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Sponsors and Supporters 

Trigg Island SLSC Inc wishes to acknowledge with gratitude the following sponsors and supporters: 

Gold Sponsors  

Silver Sponsors  

Bronze Sponsors 
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Trigg Island SLSC Inc Office Bearers 2023/24 Season 
 

 

Patron     His Worship – The Mayor 

     Mark Irwin 

 

Vice Patrons    Cr Tony Krsticevic 

     Karen Caddy 

 

Honorary Medical Officer  Dr Marianne Phillips 

Honorary Legal Officer   Liam O’Shea 

External Auditor   Michael Cooper Crunch Audit 

 

Life Membership Committee  Frank Parlevliet 

     Allan Porteus 

     David Somers 

     Andrew Goss 

     Bronwyn Meldrum 

 

Constitution Committee   Shane Bowbridge 

     Nick Journet 

     Tony Moore 

 

Hall Committee    Frank Parlevliet 

     Allan Porteus 

 

Disciplinary Committee   Vice President (Ex-Officio) 

     Norm Waldeck 

     Warren Vanalopulos  
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PRESIDENT   
Carolyn Ryan 

Environmental Officer Not filled 

  

VICE PRESIDENT   Hayden Marchetto 

  

CLUB CAPTAIN   Peter Savage 

  

  

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION  Hayden Marchetto 

Club Administrator Bronwyn Meldrum 

Assets Officers   Paul Attenborough 

House Manager   Not filled 

Bar Manager  Anthony O'Shea 

Merchandise Officer (Shop Coordinator) Marie Waldeck 
  

DIRECTOR OF LIFESAVING  Chris Davies 

Lifesaving Manager   Not filled 

Patrol Officer     James Oudejans 

First Aid Officer David Reid 

Power Craft Officer     Justin Meldrum 

Communication Officer  Not filled 

Drone Operation Officer     Craig Piercy 

Water Safety Officer Not filled 

  

DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION Grant Rosman 

Education Manager Not filled 

Bronze Coordinator Alessandra Gillmore/ Jasmin Naylor 

SRC Coordinator Jenny Taylor/Julia Suffell 

Skill Maintenance Coordinator Sophie Lawson 

NRC Coordinator   Jenny Taylor 

Emergency Care Coordinator    David Reid 

Power Craft Coordinator Mark Armstrong 

Aviation Coordinator Craig Piercy 

New Trainers/Assessors’ Coordinator     Not filled 

Patrol Education Officer Gabrielle Jolliffe 

  

DIRECTOR OF SURF SPORTS    Jeremy Hunter 

Board Captain Brodie Holmes 

Boat Captain Lauren Jolliffe 

Ski Captain Brodie Holmes 

Swim Captain Jake Smith 

Beach Captain Tim Carr 

Masters’ Captain  Rochelle McKee 

R&R Captain Carol Gibbs 

IRB Captain   Adam Yeo 

Lifesaving Events Captain Not filled 

Pool Rescue Captain Jake Smith 

March Past Captain Norman Gibbs 
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DIRECTOR OF YOUTH 

Under 14 Officer 

Mike Boisvert 

Renae Liddell (resigned)/Kirk Phillips 

Under 15 Officer Sam Rigg (resigned)/Robert Walker 

Under 17 Officer Kimber Radford 

Under 19 Officer Not filled 

Youth Development Jenny Taylor 

  

DIRECTOR OF JUNIOR ACTIVITIES  Kevin Duguid 

Under 6 Officers Shane Ogilvie, Gemma Wakefield, Katerina Helmis 

 And Wayne Kennedy 

Under 7 Officers Spiros Constantaras, Pippa Volk, Mark Broady, 

 Peyton Maguire and Dannica Terris 

Under 8 Officers Hussain Maideen, Amanda Tana & Elizabeth Lake 

Under 9 Officers Nick & Melissa Straight 

Under 10 Officers Lauren Robertson, & Ivan Knezovic 

Under 11 Officers Adam Yeo & Jacob Smith 

Under 12 Officer Risma Price & Lauren Stafford 

Under 13 Officers Donna Zaffino & Tim Carr 

Nipper Equipment Manager Peter Taylor 

Nipper Lifesaving & Education Manager Not filled 

Nipper Coaching & Competition Manager Rhys Bawden 

Nipper Water Safety Coordinator Kirk Phillips 

Nipper Administration Officer Adam Yeo 

  

Blue Hole Coordinator Luke Upfold 
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Minutes of the 2023 Annual General Meeting  
 Trigg Island Surf Life Saving Club Inc. 

Annual General Meeting 

Held: 16th June 2023 

Minutes  

1.1 Present:  Members as per the Registration Book 

1.2 Apologies: Brian Carthew, Nan Carthew, Andrew Goss, David Somers, John Rhatigan, Sophie 

Lawson, Hayden Marchetto, Shane Bowbridge, Doug Carter, Tyla Savage, Lauren Robertson, Liam 

O’Shea, Kristine Gillmore, Michael Cooper (Auditor) 

1.3 Guests  His Worship Mayor Mark Irwin, Cr Felicity Farrelly 

 

2.1 Meeting Opened at 6.34pm 

President Cas Ryan in the chair opened the meeting and welcomed all to the 2022/23 Annual General Meeting 

to finish a very successful year for the Club. She thanked everyone’s efforts during the past season, and 

farewelled the 2 outgoing Directors, Rob Innocent and Sophie Lawson, then performed an Acknowledgement 

to Country.  Cas then welcomed Life Members present:  Allan Porteus, Frank Parlevliet, Justin Meldrum, Norm 

Waldeck, Mike Cook, Jenny Taylor, Paul Attenborough, Brian Campbell, Bronwyn Meldrum, Kevin Duguid, 

Peter Taylor Don Greenhill and Cas Ryan. 

2.2 Presentation of Service Medals – SLSA services medals were awarded to: - 

• 25 Years – Rowan Caren 

• 25 Years – Andrew Mosel 

• 25 Years – Lou Nedkoff 

• 25 Years – Lynne Whittle 

• 40 Years – David Somers 

• 60 Years – Don Greenhill 

• 60 Years – Allan Porteus 

2.3  Minutes of the 2021/22 Annual General Meeting were confirmed as a Correct record.  

Moved – Jenny Taylor, seconded – Mark Doick – carried 

3.1  Adoption of the 2022/23 Annual Report and Financial Statement 

3.2 The President presented the Annual Report, asked the meeting if there were any questions to any  

Directors.   

 

3.3 Financial Report – As Hayden was an apology due to work commitments, Cas presented the Financial 

Report 

The Club had a solid year of income growth as was the cost of doing business for the Club.  Reporting a 

$49,423 operating profit, however after adding depreciation resulted in a net loss of $34,603 

 

ITEM 1 Attendance 

ITEM 2 Opening and Confirmation of Previous Minutes 

ITEM 3 – Receipt and Adoption of the 2022/23 Annual Report and Financial Statements 
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Most revenue streams grew in comparison to the previous season by 9.1% 

• Merchandise +27% 

• Bar +24.7% 

• Kiosk +10.6% 

• increase in venue hire by 13.5%. 

• Carnival hosting increased by 26% 

• Donations +43.5% due to participating in the SLSWA Giving Day 

 

Expenditure also increased by 9%  

• Employment casts increased 31.8% as we added to our workforce with fulltime employment of our 

Head of Coaching and Athlete Development and Communications employees 

• Increase in bar contractors due to increase in venue hire functions 19.9% 

• Administration costs reduced slight by 2.6% and Building and Utilities down by 10.1% 

• Commercial expenses increased 146.2% due to painting of the hall and in unforeseen cost to replacing 

the kitchen cool room.  Cleaning coast also increased due to no longer having caretakers on site 

 

Moved Brian Campbell, Vicki Wray-Watts. 

4.1 The Auditor’s report, was included in the Annual Report, was noted by the Members. 

As the Auditor was unable to attend the meeting, he asked to inform the meeting that the Audit 

 was clean and quick, and he was very happy with the processes that the club has in place. 

 

This season there are 4 positions on the Board of Directors up for election. Cas Ryan declared the positions 

vacant and handed over to Kevin Duguid to conduct the election of Directors. 

 

Only one nomination was received for the following positions: - 

President – Cas Ryan 

Club Captain – Peter Savage 

Director of Surf Sports – Jeremy Hunter 

Director of Education – no nomination received 

 

Kevin asked Justin Meldrum, Jenny Taylor and Mike Cook to act as scrutineers, and reminded members of 

voting rights 

Ballot papers were handed out to those who could vote 

Vote was unanimous 

Kevin asked the meeting to destroy the ballot papers 

Moved Allan Porteus, seconded Neil Bowie 

 

6.1 Patron – Mayor Mark Irwin accepted the position 

6.2 Vice Patrons – Cr Tony Krsticevic, Cr Felicity Farrelly and Karen Caddy all accepted the position of Vice 

Patron. 

7.1 Hon Medical Officer – Dr Marianne Phillips, Hon Legal Officer – Liam O’Shea 

ITEM 4 – Auditors Report 

 

ITEM 5 – Election of Office Bearers 

ITEM 6 – Appointment of Patron and Vice Patrons 

ITEM 7 – Appointment of Medical Officer and Legal Officer 
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Moved Jenny Taylor, seconded Norm Waldeck 

Frank Parlevliet, chairperson of the Life Members Committee gave a breakdown of what this committee does.  

They maintain the 15- and 25-years club service board and recognise members who are due SLSWA service 

awards. 

Life Membership is the highest honour a club can bestow on a member 

Today we have 1 nomination and urge you to vote yes to this one.  Frank asked the member to leave the room. 

Peter Savage 

 Citation read 

Frank asked the meeting to appoint Justin Meldrum, Jenny Taylor and Mike Cook to act as scrutineers.  Vote 

took place. 

Congratulations Peter Savage 

Frank asked for the ballot papers to be destroyed, moved – Allan Porteus, seconded – Neil Bowie 

 

Peter said a few words – he wasn’t sure what to say and completely not sure what had just happened but was 

extremely honoured and humbled to accept this award. He spoke of his time in the club and the friends he has 

made during this time.  Thanked his family. 

 

 

The Constitution Committee has been working through the constitution and updating it to make it more 

current. 

All changes were sent to members 21 days prior on the Notice of Annual General Meeting and is mostly 

changes in wording. As part of these changes, we will be adding a Director of Youth to the Board of Directors.  

Cas asked if anyone had any questions, there were nil.  Cas asked for a show of hands to accept the changes.  

Passed 

 

Moved Neil Bowie, seconded Brian Campbell 

 

 

Nil 

 

Cas thanked all members for their support over the season and was looking forward to the new season ahead 

 

There being no further business the meeting closed at 7.13pm. 

 

 

 

 

  

ITEM 10 – Notice of Motions 

ITEM 8 – Life Membership 

ITEM 9 – Special Resolutions 
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Attendance at Board Meetings 
 

After the 2023 AGM and prior to printing the Annual Report, the Board held 8 meetings with a valid 

quorum. Of the Board meetings with a quorum, attendance was as follows.  

 

Position Name Eligible Attended Apologies 

President C. Ryan 8 8 0 

Director of Finance & Administration H Marchetto 8 5 3 

Club Captain P Savage 8 7 1 

Director of Lifesaving  C. Davies 8 8 0 

Director of Surf Sports J. Hunter 8 6 2 

Director of Education G. Rosman 8 8 0 

Director of Nippers K Duguid 8 8 2 

Director of Youth M. Boisvert 8 6 2 
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Directorate Reports 

President 
It’s been another amazingly successful season on all fronts for Trigg Island SLSC and I would like to 

take this opportunity to thank all our volunteers that help make Trigg WA’s Premier club a force to 

be reckoned with on the Australian scene. 

Our dedicated patrolling teams keep the beach safe each weekend, and on many occasions this 

season, out of hours rescues have exceeded official rescue statistics.  Fantastic preventative 

numbers are indicative of our dedication to keeping the public safe in all weather conditions.  I 

acknowledge Chris Davies and his team for their hard work, dedication and persistence in all areas of 

the roles they take on.  Chris can be seen at nearly every patrol over the season, a dedication above 

and beyond. 

Our Youth members go from strength to strength in improving the culture of our club and showing 

enthusiasm in everything they do.  Ably lead by Mike Boisvert and his keen team of helpers, all of 

our Youth are provided with an extensive range of leadership opportunities.  They are the future of 

our club and need to be nurtured and encouraged so we can be better at member retention.  Our 

Youth have shown that they can mix it with the best with their fabulous Aussies and SLSWA Youth 

Awards results. 

Our educators show such commitment to Skills Maintenance and new awards each season.  Their 

work largely goes unnoticed as they are so skilled in their presentation and go about their work 

humbly and without needing recognition to continue their volunteering.  I thank Grant for his 

leadership and ideas in this space, as well as many others around the club.  The bulk of the work is 

done by a few but they feel well supported so I than you all. 

Our Surf Sports team have exceeded expectations this season, once again taking out the State 

Championship Open and Masters flags in tight contests for both and performing unbelievably at the 

Aussies.  These results will be outlined in other reports, but I also extend my heartfelt 

congratulations to all competitors, many who sacrificed their own results for the betterment of the 

club.  Jeremy Hunter took on the job this season and has slipped in easily to lead the team coached 

by Andrew Mosel and his area coaches.  Winning 24 of the last 27 State Championships is an 

amazing achievement.   

Kevin Duguid steps down as Nipper Director after 6 seasons and I thank him for his outstanding 

dedication, leadership and enthusiasm in all aspects of Nippers. Sunday mornings just seem to 

happen so easily, mostly due to so many volunteers putting up their hands and doing their bit.  A 

third place at States is a great effort with our numbers and I know we will continue to be a strong 

competitive club. Thanks Kev. 

The employees make the life of Director Hayden Marchetto much easier as they carry the burden of 

day-to-day activities which I know Hayden appreciates.  Hayden oversees a tight budget where 

incomes are often unknown, and expenditure items often pop up unexpectedly.  He does a great job 

with this, supporting the employees and providing cutting edge insight at Board Meetings.  

 

 

 

 



 

12 
 

Finally, our newest Life Member Pete Savage, our Club Captain.  Pete acknowledged the teamwork 

of his family in allowing him to be so involved at club level.  If there’s a container to pack or unpack, 

a carnival to set up or pack down Pete is there, always first, organising the troops.  Thanks, Pete, for 

your support in all things Trigg. 

Over the season we have sought to increase our club cultural awareness and with Care, Teamwork 

and Respect our club values.  The feeling around the club is collaborative and happy, and many ideas 

have been put into action to make people feel more welcome, better appreciated and more willing 

to come forward to volunteer.  Our job in this space is by no means over with so much more to do, 

but we are on the upwards trend and that can only mean a healthy club. 

Our sponsors and supporters are long term contributors to Trigg and I thank them very much for 

their contributions, both financially and personally.  The Building Committee has been meeting for 

12 months now and I hope soon to be able to present to the members various short- and long-term 

plans and options.  Thanks to all members of this committee; I am ever impressed by your 

knowledge, expertise and commitment. 

A small working party looking at Membership retention and acquisition has been meeting and will 

soon report their findings to the Board.  I believe there is untapped potential for increasing our 

membership numbers and look forward to Matt Hort’s group’s findings. 

Finally, a big thank you to Bronwyn Meldrum, Andrew “Mozzie” Mosel, Amber Merritt and Sam Starr 

(good to see you back fit and healthy Sam) for the work you do at the club, supporting the Board, 

and making Trigg the Club of Choice for over 1200 members. 

Cas Ryan 
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Club Captain 
Hello to all after what’s been another great season for the Trigg Island SLSC. It’s so nice to be part of 

such a vibrant and progressive club, continually striving forward. It takes work and dedication from 

so many to make this happen.  

We finally have a new roof on the operations area. Hip Hip Hooray. It took a bit longer than it should 

have but it’s done. Thanks for your patience.  

Moving around the club, starting with our nippers I would like to say a big thankyou to Kevin Duguid 

and his wife Hayley for their time and dedication in leading our age group managers and future 

lifesavers for so many years. Some great memories, I’m sure. Very much appreciated. 

The youth again had a fantastic season under the guidance of Mike Boisvert and his team. Looked 

like lots of fun was had, with multiple activities always on the go. Lovin life. 

Our seniors and masters did the club proud with taking out the state championships respectively. 

Both had close, hard fought wins over multiple days of competition. A credit to all for the training 

and effort over months leading up to these events. This was capped off with one of the largest 

groups heading East to the Sunshine coast for Aussies. It was great to be there and see our Youth, 

Seniors and Masters do so well across all disciplines., Well done Moz, coaches, all managers and 

parents. A real team effort. Congratulations. 

We must remember Lifesaving is the backbone of what we do and is where it all started. Thanks to 

the commitment of our patrolling members who volunteer their time to keep the public safe, we can 

all enjoy the surf club environment. When you give you get. We’re all in this together, so enjoy the 

downtime and I look forward to next summer. 

Peter Savage 
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Director of Finance and Administration 
The 2024 financial year was marked by continued adaptation and resilience, as we navigated various 

challenges to ensure the ongoing success and sustainability of Trigg Island SLSC. Despite the hurdles, 

our commitment to our members' best interests and the club's long-term wellbeing remained 

steadfast. 

Income Growth and Net Loss: This year saw a mixed performance in income streams and 

operational expenses, resulting in a net loss of $112,106, a significant increase compared to last 

year's net loss of $34,735. This increase in net loss reflects the ongoing investment in our club’s 

infrastructure, programs, and services amid a challenging economic landscape. 

Revenue Performance: The total income decreased by 8.17% to $734,148. 

• Commercial Revenue: Total commercial revenue decreased by 10.37% to $222,611. While 
merchandise and bar sales saw declines of 23.74% and 43.45% respectively, venue hire sales 
increased by 21.58%, and Bar Venue Hire Sales rose by 20.25%. 

• Membership Fees: Membership fees grew by 7.36%, bringing in $185,349. 

• Non-Commercial Income: This category saw a decline of 13.58% to $226,989. Sponsorship 
and donations fell by 21.62% and 43.50%, respectively. However, bank interest surged by 
314.05%, reflecting a positive financial management strategy. 

• Grants: Total grants decreased slightly by 0.84% to $135,057. Administrative and community 
grants saw a 20.70% increase, while lifesaving grants dropped by 58.94%. 

• Club Events: Income from club events dropped by 55.70% to $15,750, primarily due to a 
significant reduction in the Broome Sunset Carnival revenue. 

Total Expenses: The total expenditure increased by 7.33% to $726,938. 

• Commercial Expenses: Expenses in this category decreased by 22.61% to $38,478, reflecting 
cost-saving measures and efficient management. 

• Non-Commercial Expenses: These expenses saw a substantial decrease of 50.60% to 
$29,603. 

• Affiliation and Membership Fees: Slightly decreased by 3.78% to $20,369. 

• Finance and Administration: This area experienced an 18.97% increase in expenses, totalling 
$395,237. This rise is attributed to increased wages for operational staff, asset purchases 
and higher consultancy fees. 

• Lifesaving and Education: Costs in this segment rose by 8.32% to $17,434, reflecting our 
continued investment in essential lifesaving equipment and education programs. 

• Surf Sports: Expenditure in surf sports decreased by 17.92% to $52,905, with significant 
reductions in costs associated with competitions and general expenses. 

• Nippers and Youth Programs: Expenditures in nippers decreased by 9.40% to $27,292, while 
youth program expenses saw a significant increase of 237.58% to $16,130. 

• Equipment and Depreciation: Total equipment costs increased by 40.16% to $118,011, 
driven by higher depreciation and asset disposal costs. 

• Community Engagement: Costs in this category rose by 50.63% to $11,475, reflecting our 
ongoing commitment to community programs and contractor payments. 
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Cash Flow Statement explained 

The cash flow statement on page 4 of the Financial Report shows the actual cash generated and 

spent by the club over the year, providing a clear picture of how cash is managed and ensuring we 

can meet our financial obligations. It highlights the sources of cash inflows and outflows, helping 

assess our financial health and operational efficiency. 

 

Our statement of cash flows indicates that while we have effectively managed to secure funds from 

memberships, sponsorships, and grants, our operating activities resulted in a net cash outflow of 

$27,033 this year, compared to an inflow of $98,277 last year. This shift highlights increased 

payments to suppliers and employees, reflecting our investment in club operations and community 

programs. Additionally, cash used for investing activities, particularly the purchase of property, 

plant, and equipment, amounted to $33,307. Although this indicates robust reinvestment into club 

infrastructure, it contributed to the overall decrease in our cash position from $473,158 to $412,818 

by year-end. We can derive some key financial ratios to better understand the financial health and 

effectiveness of cash usage for Trigg Island SLSC. 

Liquidity Ratios: 

Current Ratio: Measures the club’s ability to pay short-term obligations. 

o Current Ratio = Current Assets / Current Liabilities 

o Current Ratio (2024) = $525,555 / $83,919 = 6.26 

o Current Ratio (2023) = $513,933 / $44,170 = 11.64 

Analysis: The current ratio shows a strong liquidity position, although it has decreased from the 

previous year, indicating a higher proportion of current liabilities relative to current assets. 

Profitability Ratios: 

Net Profit Margin: Measures how much of each dollar earned is translated into profits. 

• Net Profit Margin = Net Profit / Revenue 

• Net Profit Margin (2024) = -$112,831 / $734,148 = -15.37% 

• Net Profit Margin (2023) = -$34,769 / $799,008 = -4.35% 

Analysis: The net profit margin has decreased, indicating that a larger portion of revenue is being 

consumed by expenses, leading to a higher net loss. 

Efficiency Ratios: 

Asset Turnover Ratio: Measures the efficiency of using assets to generate revenue. 

• Asset Turnover Ratio = Revenue / Total Assets 

• Asset Turnover Ratio (2024) = $734,148 / $1,221,974 = 0.60 

• Asset Turnover Ratio (2023) = $799,008 / $1,295,057 = 0.62 

Analysis: The slight decrease in the asset turnover ratio indicates a marginal reduction in the 

efficiency of using assets to generate revenue. 

Solvency Ratios: 

Debt to Equity Ratio: Measures the club’s financial leverage. 

• Debt to Equity Ratio = Total Liabilities / Total Equity 

• Debt to Equity Ratio (2024) = $83,919 / $1,138,056 = 0.074 

• Debt to Equity Ratio (2023) = $44,170 / $1,250,887 = 0.035 

Analysis: The debt-to-equity ratio indicates low financial leverage, which means the club is not 

heavily reliant on debt financing. However, there is a slight increase from the previous year. 
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The financial ratios as above suggest that Trigg Island SLSC maintains a strong liquidity position and 

low financial leverage. However, there are challenges in profitability and efficiency, reflected in the 

decreased net profit margin and asset turnover ratio. The club continues to make significant 

investments in infrastructure and community programs, as evidenced by the cash outflows from 

operating and investing activities. These investments are essential for long-term growth but have 

impacted the short-term cash position. Moving forward, focusing on improving profitability and 

maintaining efficient use of assets will be crucial. 

Conclusion 

Despite a challenging year, we have continued to invest in the future of Trigg Island SLSC, focusing 

on member services, community engagement, and sustainable practices. Our efforts have been 

supported by a dedicated team of volunteers and staff who work tirelessly to ensure the smooth 

operation of our club. 

We’d like to acknowledge and thank our operational team: Club Administrator Bronwyn Meldrum, 

Engagement, Community and Partnerships Coordinator Sam Starr, Communication & Content 

Manager Amber Merritt, and Head of Athlete Development and Coaching Andrew Mosel. Bronwyn 

has excelled in her continued management and front-of-house duties. Samantha has returned, 

securing additional funding and continuing community programs. Amber's innovative marketing 

strategies have boosted our visibility and engagement. Andrew's leadership has been key to our 

success in retaining the State Championships, achieving success at the Aussie Titles, hosting 

carnivals, and developing athletes. All we can say is watch this space. 

Our thanks also to SLSWA, who provide a financial contribution to the club because of their 

fundraising initiatives and promotional support for Surf Sports, Lifesaving and Education initiatives. 

Additionally, the City of Stirling continues to provide our annual funding grant, for which the club is 

extremely grateful. 

We’d like to offer our sincere gratitude to all the teams of volunteers whose work and support allow 

our proud club to continue delivering on our commitment to members. We would also like to 

personally thank and farewell the director who will be stepping down from the board, Kevin Duguid. 

Kevin, who has been a valuable and dedicated member of the board showcased his commitment and 

support, alongside his availability to all members at any time, leaves a legacy filled with integrity and 

admiration. Kevin, thank you! 

At Trigg, we play the infinite game. We protect every life and continue to develop inclusive 

communities. We will continue to recognise all our heroes because not every hero wears a cape. We 

will continue to invest in the front line of lifesaving, educations and surf sports. 

It takes a mix of hard work and passionate club supporters to lay the platform for history to be 

made. We never take this for granted. We work for each other, we work for the community, and the 

performances over the last 12 months are vintage beyond forgery and imitation.  

In closing, we would also like to thank you, our members, for your support. We appreciate your 

ongoing trust to manage your club, our club. Our work is never done, nor is perfection ever reached; 

that is the infinite game. 

Thank you 

Hayden Marchetto 
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Membership 
 

2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 

Probationary 4 1 1 

Nipper 440 460 487 

Youth Under 14/15 59 59 68 

Youth Under 17/19 78 86 97 

Active 115 115 115 

Award 0 2 2 

Reserve Active 0 1 1 

Long Service 91 90 90 

Parent 394 441 441 

Community 18 33 33 

Life 27 27 27 

Total 1226 1352 1352 
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Director of Lifesaving 
Lifesaving and patrolling our beach are at the core of everything that we do as a community service 

organisation and sporting club. 

It goes without saying that the communal effort involved in performing those patrols is no small 

task. 

Under the season 23/24 service agreement with the City of Stirling we provided patrols for Trigg 

Beach from Saturday October 7th 2023 to Monday April 1st 2024 on weekends and public holidays, 

this year including the Easter long weekend. This amounted to 117 rostered patrols provided by 16 

patrol teams and the voluntary AM patrols of Christmas day and New Year's Day. 

In addition, we provided 4 Abalone patrols across the 4 abalone fishing season dates. 

Prior to the commencement of patrols, we again allocated members to patrol teams as they re-

enrolled or gained new qualifications with a view to maintaining consistency for patrol membership 

balanced against requests based on friendship and family groups. While we were not always to 

accommodate everyone's requests, on the whole, a balance was achieved. James and Bronwyn put 

in a lot of time initially to work out teams at the beginning of the season and the youth team were 

able to provide insight into the best groupings for new SRC award holders as the education team 

completed courses through the season. We also responded to a handful of requests for members to 

change patrols for various personal and work reasons. 

Patrol Teams 

This season we were fortunate in that the majority of patrol captains and vice captains continued in 

their roles providing stability to the lifesaving area.  

We also welcomed some new Patrol Captains who were supported by experienced patrol teams 

and/or assisted by experienced patrol captains. 

We were also fortunate to have former patrol captain Steve Glossup available as backup leader as 

well as acting to help new PCs find their feet where required. We are lucky to have a lot of diversity 

in our patrol leadership group with a spread of ages, gender and experience. 

This season we formed a second carnival patrol to assist in reducing the availability conflict 

experienced by Surf Sports athletes. A second goal for this team is to provide an opportunity to build 

towards other first aid competition areas. Building this team is ongoing. 

Voluntary attendance patrols 

This year our calendar included a second voluntary attendance patrol on the morning of January 1st 

coined the "President's Patrol" captained by president Cas Ryan. The weather on New Year's Day 

turned out to be much more favourable than for the second team of volunteers on Christmas Day's 

volunteer patrol where Youth Lifesaver of the Year Bo Watters performed a board rescue at the 

Bluehole with limited support and in difficult conditions. 

Special thanks to all those that attended both Christmas day AM patrols as well as the New Year’s 

Day AM patrol. 
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Abalone 

In addition to our standard beach patrols, Trigg contributed patrols to each of the four abalone 

season days.  

The originally scheduled fishing day of February 3rd 2024 was cancelled by the Department of 

Primary Industries and Regional Development (DPIRD) after consultation with Surf Life Saving WA 

SLSWA and Recfishwest based on the high-risk Hazardous Surf Assessment and expected poor water 

visibility. A replacement date of March 9 2024 was added in its place. 

Trigg Island SLSC provided up to 4 IRBs with drivers and crews, 2 x Jet skis with operators, land-based 

patrols, first aid capabilities and coordination in our zone which extended from Trigg Island to north 

of Bailey Street. Swanbourne Nedlands Surf Club again provided additional land-based personnel to 

this zone, extending our capabilities and experience. 

Members gained valuable experience operating in and around the reefs to the north of Trigg Island. 

John Rhatigan performed the roll of Land Zone coordinator and recruited members to assist with 

land-based activities. 

Justin Meldrum assembled equipment and operators and crew for the water-based patrols. 

SLSWA topped up our supplies of PPE in the form of booties and gloves where required for 

operations on the reefs and also provided more throw lines to assist in reef rescues. The state 

government funds SLSWA to provide water safety for the season days and Trigg Island SLSC received 

a share of that based on the resources that we provided. 

Largely due to the benign weather conditions, our members were not required to perform any 

rescues and instead were able to focus on preventative actions and a handful of first aid cases. 

 

Prior to the first abalone fishing date, the education and Powercraft teams organised a multi-agency 

water-based exercise with WA Water Police and Volunteer Marine Rescue boats. The exercise 

involved practising patient transfers from IRB and Jet ski Power craft to larger vessels followed by a 

simulated line search. Much was learned by all parties involved. 

Equipment 

Betty's Burgers provided a much-needed new shade tent for patrols to replace the existing tent. 

These tents take a battering from the harsh environment of the beach and Betty's Burgers' donation 

of the tent was very much appreciated. 

Thanks to sponsor B&E Fire Protection, we were able to purchase new sets of binoculars as well 2 

new rescue boards for use this season. Further pairs of used binoculars were provided by WA Water 

Police. 
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RWC 

A roster operated across the season providing RWC support to the majority of morning patrols and 

some afternoon patrols. RWCs also operated in water safety roles for carnivals. We continue to have 

the use of 2 RWCs allowing us to provide multiple RWCs when required, for instance during abalone 

patrols where we were able to provide 2 RWCs with driver and crew in addition to multiple IRBs. 

Patrol Statistics 

In the 2023/24 season we provided 117 rostered patrols comprised of members amounting to 6387 

hours which is on a par with previous years of similar length seasons. An additional 166.25 hours 

were provided as abalone patrols. 

Year 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 

Beach Attendance 125,097 148,767 100,950 94,438 

First Aid 139 73 82 211 

Preventative Action  1,618 642 1,829 928 

Rescues  104 25 36 23 

Patrol Hours 6,352 6,253 6,233 6387 

Patrolling Members* 283 280 338 222 

*Excluding Water Safety. 

23 rescues were recorded this season, down from the previous seasons. IRBs and boards performed 

the majority of rescues with PWCs involved in the rest. 

211 first aids were performed, up significantly from last season but mostly marine stings and minor 

cuts and abrasions. Fortunately, there were no drownings, no use of defibrillators and only 6 

required ambulances. This points to the competency and timeliness of the rescues performed and 

water observation. 

It is also noted that club members performed notable rescues out of normal patrol activities on at 

least 2 separate Wednesday afternoons when teams were training and conditions were particularly 

testing. 

Of the 222 members who patrolled this season, 10% are Long Service or Life Members. 

I'd like to take this opportunity to publicly thank everyone who contributed to this season. 

Including my immediate team James, Justin and Dave. 

All the patrol captains and vice captains 

IRB drivers and crews - drivers in particular as they are regularly asked to undertake more than their 

fair share of the heavy lifting. 

The ARTs and first aid volunteers 

And last but not least, all the bronze and SRC award holders who make up the rank and file of our 

capabilities. 
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There is also an army of almost invisible members that quietly go about their business behind the 

scenes during the week, making sure that everything keeps ticking along for the following weekend 

that I would like to thank. 

I'd also like to acknowledge that none of this would be possible without Bron and the admin team, 

the education team and of course our sponsors. 

Chris Davies 
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Director of Education 
This season has been marked by exceptional results and accomplishments within the education 

portfolio. A variety of courses were delivered and we successfully reached individuals of all ages and 

skill levels, empowering them with the knowledge and confidence to stay safe and keep others safe in 

and near the ocean. From basic water safety to advanced rescue techniques, individuals have honed 

their abilities and are better prepared to respond effectively to emergencies in the aquatic 

environment. 

We successful introduced a unified e-Application Form. Members can now conveniently apply for all 

courses online via a single application form ensuring a hassle-free experience for both applicants and 

our education team. Looking ahead, we remain committed to leveraging digital solutions to further 

enhance the accessibility and effectiveness of our educational programs. 

Attainment of the updated Silver Medallion Patrol Captain and Silver Medallion Aquatic Rescue 

awards, including up to facilitator qualifications, will significantly enhance the capabilities and 

effectiveness of our patrol teams. These advanced awards serve as a vital component of our education 

pathway, providing members with a clear progression of learning and skill development. 

 

Powercraft operators had the opportunity to train alongside WA Water Police and Volunteer Marine 

Rescue, learning advanced recovery and patient treatment techniques in preparation for their roles 

supporting Abalone patrols. 

The annual skills maintenance program, commonly referred to as the "proficiency test," ensures that 

surf lifesavers possess the necessary skills and knowledge to perform their duties effectively. The 

education team dedicated a significant portion of effort to ensure all our members had opportunity 

to maintain their skills across all award categories. They comprehensive skills maintenance program 

introduced a ‘twilight’ session, expanding access opportunities for members with competing interests. 
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We have seen a large number of members gain new awards throughout the season.  A number of 

courses were run prior to as well as during the season, with awards gained as follows: 

2023/2024 Candidates 

Bronze Medallion 28 

IRB Crew 15 

Silver Medallion IRB 
Driver 

6 

ART 6 

Surf Rescue Certificate 25 

Nipper Rescue 
Certificate 

35 

First aid 23 

RWC Operator 2 

Resuscitation 0 

Radio Operator 2 

Pain Management 1 

Silver Medallion 
Aquatic Rescue 

1 

Silver Medallion Patrol 
Captain 

10 

Training Officer  1 

Facilitator (Drone) 1 

Youth Trainers 5 

Total 161 

 

I extend my deepest gratitude to all members of our Education Team. Their passion, expertise, and 

dedication have been the driving force behind our educational initiatives, providing individuals with 

essential lifesaving skills and fostering a culture of safety within our community. 

 

Grant Rosman 
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Director of Surf Sports 
The 2023/24 seasons success can be measured through several ways, medals, flags, trophies and 

equally through the enjoyment, camaraderie and happiness of our athletes in all of the areas of surf 

sports. Also, the happiness of those who support the athletes; officials, water safety, coaches and 

parents are equally important and necessary for the short-term success of the program and the 

long-term sustainability of the club. Research by SLSA has shown that those stay the longest in the 

surf lifesaving are those that have a connection to the competitive component. 

 

As we look back upon and celebrate the end of another long, busy and very successful season, I 

would like to thank those who assisted me in my role as the Director of Surf Sports. Firstly, thanks to 

the staff of Trigg who make my job as a director easier. Thank Andrew Mosel (Head Coach), Bronwyn 

Meldrum (Club Administrator) and Amber Merritt (social media) and Sam Starr (marketing). All ably 

assist in helping the sports section of the club functioning well. 

 

Thank you to the volunteers. There is a long list of people who just do it for “love”. Their motivation 

is to help others and hopefully, in some way, helps them too. Dave Motteram has been coaching the 

youth beginner boards for many years, kicking off with off-season winter boards and continue 

throughout the year. Dave now incorporates U/13s into his board program, so we can best prepare 

them for Australian Championship since their inclusion last season. This new initiative has been very 

well received by the athletes and parents.  

 

Thank you to the ski coaches, Todd Brewer, Reece Baker and Troy Baird for their ongoing 

contribution. With such a large squad with diverse ages, genders and abilities it’s great to see the 

coaches work together to provide a program for all. With Todd’s increased availability he really set 

up his coaching this season and has been rewarded by being named as a finalist for SLSWA Coach of 

the Year.  

 

Thanks to Karl Smith for coaching our beach sprinters. The beachies had greater success winning 

multiple medals at Sates and Aussies. The beach is an area that we hope to grow and add to our 

competition competitive quiver. Thank you to Norman and Carol Gibbs for coaching the March 

teams. Their efforts resulted in two U/23 March past teams at States what won the gold and silver 

medals. Then the team went on to win back-to-back gold medals at Aussies. Norms efforts have also 

been recognised with him being named as a finalist for SLSWA Coach of the Year. 

 

Many thanks to the Team Selection Committee and the Surf Sports Committee, provided 

information and feedback on ideas and plans for the club. Thank you to Jake Smith and Jaz Shipway -

Carr who again stepped up as Sports Captains. 

 

Thank you to the Carnival patrol who fills the absence of athletes when carnivals are on. Thanks to 

club members who act as officials, water safety personal and first aid at the carnivals that we 

compete in to ensure we have the appropriate ratio to meet the requirements of SLSWA.  
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The club hosted or run 8 Surf Carnivals this season. This is easily the highest number of events of all 

the WA clubs and shows that we are the trusted club when it comes to hosting SLSWA events and 

Championships. A positive to having so many events at Trigg, is that it is a great advantage for our 

competitors to race on their home beach and they provide a good revenue stream for the club. 

There is a lot of work that goes into these carnivals and the work is done by our amazing volunteers 

who help with the set up and pack down. Thanks to any parent who picked up a star picket, set up or 

packed down a tent or set up a running track. It was also great to see athletes this season helping 

with the pack down of carnivals after they had finished competing for the day.  

 

I would like to say a special thank you to Brian ‘Boots’ Campbell, Boots spends around 10 hours per 

day over a carnival weekend marking sure everything is set up perfectly and runs smoothly. This 

makes our carnivals well attended and profitable for the club, his efforts cannot be overstated.  

  

As in all areas of the Club, the Surf Sports division is trying to evolve to meet the requirements of its 

members where it can. This season we have purchased new oars, helmets, surf skis, vests and 

obtained new long boards. Ensuring that our athlete members are some the best looked after along 

our coast. At the end of this season, we surveyed some of athletes to see what we could do better 

and what we are doing well. This will give us some information to further improve Surf Sports.  

 

Trigg Island had a huge contingency head over to the Sunshine Coast in Queensland for the Aussies 

and it was again another successful National Titles. This year at Maroochydore it provided 

challenging conditions and solid swell, our athletes relished that opportunity and took on the 

conditions. Our club combined medal count from the Australian Championships was 11 Gold, 11 

Silver and 10 Bronze medals across the Youth, Masters and Open competition. With all areas 

contributing to the medal count it shows that we have great depth across the ages.  

 

Many thanks to the Team Managers at Aussies. Norm Waldeck, who some of the younger athletes 

would have only just met, is a maestro of management. His efforts at Aussies often go unnoticed 

because things run so smoothly. Club Administrator, Bronwyn Meldrum ably assisted Norm as a 

manager to make sure all were entered, team changes submitted, craft arrived, uniforms fitted and 

the athletes kept updated with changing schedules. Thank you also to all the on-beach arena team 

managers, Mike Boisvert, Amanda Versace, Natalie Hawkes, Jenny Taylor, Emily Doddy, Paul Burton, 

Andrew Mosel, Ed Negus and Brad Headling. They all had the responsibility of their competition 

arenas, keeping across everything in their area and making sure everyone was at marshalling and 

happy.  

 

We again won the Senior State Championships, Master State Championship, Surf Rescue 

Championship and the Board Riding Championship. The Senior State Championships was an 

extremely hard fight, only taking the lead on the last day of the competition. Our total point score of 

871 is the highest point score that has ever been achieved under the combined points system. Since 

1997 when Trigg Island won its first Senior State Championship, the club has now won every year 

apart from three times, when we came 2nd to City of Perth each of those years. Winning 24 of the 

last 27 years is a huge effort and something the whole club should be proud of and celebrate. Having 

sustained success over so many years is a very rare and special achievement.  
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With the announcement that there would only be one Western Suns State Team section event at 

Secret Harbour and with the likelihood of waves and a sand bank. We knew gaining experience in 

the condition was extremely important for selection. With many Trigg Island athletes wanting to 

make the team and setting it as one of their major goals for the year. The club planned 2 weekends 

of training at Secret Harbour, to pass on racing tips, surf skill practice and to formularise everyone 

with the beach. The end result was that 14 athletes who were selected for the Western Suns Team 

and the Super Surf Teams League. This was the largest number of competitors from one club and 

there were also many other Trigg competitors who were very unlucky not to be selected. 

 

Overall, this season Trigg Island had 18 athletes who were selected to represent WA as part of the 

Wester Suns Surf State Team, Pool Rescue Team and the 2 WA Teams as part of the Super Surf 

Teams League, this is the highest representation of all the WA clubs. Dan Humble and Jaz Shipway -

Carr were the captains of the Western Suns team and Jake Smith was captain of the Western Suns 

Pool Rescue Team.  

 

We have two Trigg Island members Jake Smith and Harrison Hynes who are part of the Australian 

Lifesaving team, both have been selected for World Championships this September on the Gold 

Coast. The Australian Lifesaving team which is extremely hard team to make with only 6 positions 

available and for us to have two members in this team is fantastic. We wish Jake and Harrison good 

luck for the World Championships. 

 

At the recent SLSWA Youth & Nipper Awards that recognise and celebrate the outstanding 

achievements the younger members, Trigg Island had many finalists and winners on the night. Oliver 

Browne (U/14) and Macy Boisvert (U/15) were their Surf Sports Age Champions. Indiah Reidy was a 

finalist for Youth Official of the Year and was named the winner of prestigious Youth of the Year 

Award. Oliver Browne, Billy Hawkes and Trent Yates were finalist for Youth Athlete of the Year with 

Trent being awarded the winner after his incredible season. 

 

SLSWA have announced its finalists for the upcoming Awards of Excellence to recognise and 

celebrate the achievements of WA members throughout the season. For the Surf Sports awards, 

Trigg Island is very well represented with a finalists or multiple finalists in each category. The 

winners will be announced at the 2024 Awards Ceremony, Saturday, 15 June 2024. Each Winner of 

Surf Sports awards will go on to represent Western Australia at the annual SLSA Australia Awards of 

Excellence, which will be held in November. At the 2023 SLSA Awards of Excellence, Jake Smith was 

announced as the winner of SLSA Surf Sport Open Athlete of the Year.  

Congratulations Jake! 

 

SLSWA Awards of Excellence Finalist 

Bernie Kelly Medal - Annika Negus 

Official of the Year - Justin Meldrum 

Coach of the Year – Andrew Mosel, Norman Gibbs, Todd Brewer 

Athlete of the Year - Annika Negus, Harrison Hynes, Jake Smith 

Young Athlete of the Year - Annika Negus, Eleanor Flowers, Milly Kok, Olivia Doddy 

Team of the Year - Open Male Pool Rescue, U17 Female Board Relay, U23 March Past 

 

Jeremy Hunter 
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Director of Nippers 
It has been a huge season again with our nippers. We started the season of early with our Nipper 

committee planning sessions to ensure that we delivered the best we could for our kids. As always, 

our Lifesaving, surf sports, surf education pathways were front of mind during these sessions and 

our main goal was participation and fun. We delivered that with massive group numbers from our 

U6 up to U11. There is a nationwide trend with U12-13 groups of retention issues, which is an 

ongoing issue that we and all surf clubs and sporting groups face with the age group, so a lot more 

work is required in this space. 

We saw huge involvement from our U6&7 parents who stepped up this year as Age Managers there 

were 9 across both groups which is our largest numbers to date. Thank you to all of our Age 

Managers and their assistants without your time and efforts our kids simply would not be able to do 

what they do.  

We kicked off with our U13 Development camp at Ern Halliday which was an enormous success and 

bigger than ever. Our U13 group participated in Leadership presentations, goal setting and worked 

on team building and bonding activities supported by their Age Managers, our Youth Leadership 

team and some of the Board of Directors. They presented and selected our Nipper Leadership team, 

who made a real impact this season with behind-the-scenes planning, weekly catch-up meetings, 

morning announcements and working on ways to include and mentor all age groups, with all skill 

levels. 

Moving into our surf sport season we saw again considerable numbers at our board training sessions 

both U8-10 and U11-13. Our U13 group were able to train with our youth squad and got some 

valuable experience with the youth group as well as returning to our Nipper group and pass some of 

those skill on. Again, these things do not happen without our volunteer coaches and water safety 

members so for all of you that supported us in training sessions during the week or weekends thank 

you. 

As I have mentioned our nippers do not get to participate without our huge volunteer base. So, to 

everyone that volunteered from our kids THANK YOU they would not be able to do what they do 

without you. To our Age Managers, Nipper Committee Members, Coaches, Water Safety, Canteen 

Volunteers, set up/Pack Up crews and everyone else that helped out and volunteered their time for 

our club Thank You. 

We also had to privilege of hosting our own Nipper Carnival in January and the Nipper State 

Championships in March which were an enormous success. This was a major fundraising event for 

our club and also huge logistical task. Again, the volunteer army that our club has is second to none. 

We had some remarkable results across all age groups, so a huge congratulations to all that 

participated not only these events but all Little Nipper, Nipper, Beach, and R&R events across the 

season. Our surf sports future is extraordinarily strong. 

So finally, from me it has been six years that I have held this role as Nipper Director. It has been a 

huge privilege and joy to help guide our kids through their nipper journey and also the club through 

some tough times. We were in the middle of laying the cans for the state championship’s when they 

were cancelled due to covid. The next 12 months or so were unchartered territory for us as a s club 

to navigate. We pushed on and won the inaugural SLSWA Nipper Club of the Year, our awards of 

excellence in a nipper space with multiple nominees each year, Age Manager of the year award, two 

Nipper Program Coordinator of the Year Awards, Lavan WA Club of the Year and National Club of the 

Year.  
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Our Nipper Committee have been at the fore front of all these their dedication time and drive to 

continually improve our club is amazing. Without this group of amazing people, I could not have 

done my role anywhere near what I have, so THANK YOU ALL. To our Board of Directors, another 

group of resolute and passionate volunteers Thank You for all you do for our club and the support 

and guidance we have all received. Finally, to my Family Thank you is not enough. It is a vital role to 

hold and requires some sacrifices from me, but you make them as well. Definitely without the 

support from Hayley, Alex and Henry I could not have done what I have loved to do for so long. 

THANK YOU. So, thank you all for a great year and I will see you on the beach. 

Kevin Duguid 
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Marketing and Promotions 
What another incredible year for our club, so many fantastic achievements and lifelong memories 

made. I’d like to acknowledge the champions supporting our champions – our esteemed sponsors 

and supporters. Without their unwavering dedication and generosity, the magic we create at Trigg 

Island would simply not be possible. 

B & E Fire Protection, our shining Gold Sponsor. Michael Morrison’s spontaneous offer to 

help all those years ago has blossomed into a partnership that continues to elevate our 

community programs and lifesaving services. They’re the best in the fire protection game, 

enabling us to be the best at protecting the community at Trigg Beach. Thank you, B&E Fire 

Protection, for your long-standing support. 

 

Realty Lane, who have brought a whole new level of possibility to our club. Daniel and 

Maria's "It's Possible" attitude perfectly aligns with our ethos. Their two-year commitment 

as Gold Sponsors has paved the way for exciting developments ahead. Thank you, Realty 

Lane, for believing in us and providing possibilities that wouldn’t exist without your support.  

 

Motteram Bowie & Ham are our steadfast Silver Sponsors who have been by our side for 

over twenty years! Not only do they crunch numbers like pros, but they also play a vital role 

in shaping the future of Surf Sports. Remember that tax season is upon us – make that 

appointment with Motteram Bowie Ham pronto and support those who support your club. 

 

Give IT, our tech-savvy Silver Sponsors who have been our lifeline for over ten years. Matt's 

patience and expertise has saved the day more times than we can count. When it comes to 

IT support, Give IT is the name to trust. Thank you Give IT for keeping us connected! 

 

St Mary’s Anglican Girls School and Trigg Island SLSC have had a long-standing relationship. 

From our boarders’ program, to running beach school each year for the Year 3’s, St Mary’s 

now formally join our community as Silver Sponsors. Many of our female members are 

current or past students of St Mary’s, and as locals, it’s wonderful to have their support.  

 

Betty’s Burgers have played an incredible role in supporting us for the 23/24 season as new 

Silver Sponsors. Through both financial support and their incredibly delicious “in-kind” 

support, their energy and collaborative nature have made this partnership both fun and 

successful. Huge thanks to Betty’s Burgers! 

 

Airforce Airconditioning & Solar are led by our very own members John and Heidi Sutcliffe. 

Their continued sponsorship of Trigg Island helps us all keep our cool in many ways. If you 

need to keep your place cool (or heat things up), we can’t recommend them enough! Thank 

you, Airforce Airconditioning & Solar. 

 

Hollow Surf, supporting the club as Bronze Sponsors, owned by also another one of our own 

members Jono Culley. As well as their financial support of the club they also provide all 

members with an awesome 15% discount in-store all year – shakas to you guys! 
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Gratitude and thanks to Mortgage Choice for their support once more. We appreciate 

everything you do for us, Travis Burton – another club member supporting Trigg Island, 

thank you.  

 

The 2023/24 season saw another year of support from Bugmaster. Thank you for your years 

of dedication to the club. 

To our supporters, Aqua Technics, West Coast Physio, Morley Mitsubishi – our heartfelt thanks to 

you.  

And last but certainly not least, our benefactors.  

Trigg Art Club – another incredible $10,000 donation. Ann Dunstan, you’re one in a million.  

 

City of Stirling – your constant support across operations, facilities and more allows us to be 

here, doing what we do. Thank you.  

 

Surf Life Saving WA – we couldn’t do it without you. From support with club distribution 

through to the Woodside Nipper program and everything else in between! Thanks for not 

only your financial support but your guidance and governance too.   

 

Rotary Club of Karrinyup – always a constant presence here at Trigg Island SLSC, thank you 

for the new oar for our surf boat this season.  

 

The Avenell Family – once again, a wonderful donation this season for our Avenell Award 

recipient – this contribution makes a real impact year after year.    

To all our sponsors, your support is the backbone of our success. We couldn't do it without you, and 

for that, we are eternally grateful.  

Sam Starr 
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Director of Youth 
The 2023/24 was an excellent season with a total of 133 youth members from U14 to U19 who 

patrolled, socialised, competed, and supported the Trigg SLS Club.  The Youth program is supported 

by a network of people from the Club with special thanks to Jenny Taylor (Youth Development and 

SRC Manager) who has put in an amazing effort to organise the Youth Leadership Program, SRC 

Training and much more.  Jenny and I were backed up by an amazing Youth Committee being Risma 

Price, Kimber Radford, Rob Walker, Natalie Hawkes, Kirk Phillips and Sam Rigg.   A special thanks to 

Cathy Reidy and Lindsay Nelligan for assisting on the Youth Camp.  I would also like to thank Head 

Coach - Andrew Mosel and Youth Coach - Dave Motteram for their support throughout the year.  We 

also had Ski, March Past, R&R, IRB’s and Boat Coaches that made a huge impact to all the Youth at 

Trigg. The coaching program ran through Winter and Summer, producing great results at States and 

Aussies for Youth. We cannot run a Youth Program without the help of all the parents who gave up 

their time to help and support the Youth.  

The 2023/24 season saw the formation of the Youth Advisory Group. The group was formed to be 

the voice of the youth, to allow the youth to share their needs to the Youth Committee.  The Youth 

Advisory included Femke Negus (U19), Julia Suffell (U19), Annika Negus (U17), Milly Kok (U17), Giaan 

Versace (U15), Indiah Reidy (U15), Josie Burton (U14) and Billy Hawkes (U14).   

The season started with the focus on Bronze Medallion, Surf Rescue Certificates and Requalification 

with youth members being put through their paces to ensure they were ready for patrol. This year 

we had 22 Youth achieve their Bronze Medallions and 20 achieve their Surf Rescue Certificate.  This 

is cornerstone of Surf Lifesaving and it shows great commitment by all our young surf lifesavers.   

Youth activities included the Volleyball night at the North Beach Volleyball Centre, Around the Island 

Challenge, Movie Night and various get togethers during the Year.  The highlight in the Youth Social 

Calendar was the Youth Camp, which was held at the SLSWA Margaret River Camp over a weekend.  

The camp was a great opportunity for Youth Members to get to know each other across all age 

groups and disciplines and got the year off to great start.  

Each year the Avenell Family donate a Long Board to one of the up-and-coming Youth members.  

This year Giaan Versace was the recipient of the Avenell Board.  Giaan has shown that she is not only 

a running superstar but is an excellent board paddler. Congratulations Giaan.  

The development of our youth in all aspects of Surf Lifesaving is the main objective for the Youth 

Program. Trigg Island runs one of the most successful Youth Leadership Programs on the West Coast 

and this year Trigg had 8 out of 28 across the state achieved their Gold Level.  This is a testament to 

the great work across all aspects of lifesaving that the Trigg youth undertake.  

Gold Level was awarded to: 

Grace Aitchison, Macy Boisvert, Tamer Christou, Eleanor Flowers, Peyton Maguire, Olivia Moar, India 

Reidy, and Elyn Bawden who achieved this award at Trigg, but now Sorrento. Marley Johansson and 

Giaan Versace gained their awards in April but will be recognised next season by SLSWA.  

These are outstanding youth members who continually give back to the club in so many ways. 

Congratulations!  
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Silver Level was achieved by: 

Morgan Buck, Josie Burton, Arielle Butler, Eleanor Flowers, Georgia Gleim, Isaac May, Holly Shiels, 

Alison Tilmouth and Giaan Versace.  

Bronze Level was achieved by: 

Sian Back, Bridget Barbaro, Kayleigh Broom, Madison Bourne, Oliver Browne, Josie Burton, Dane 

Christou, Athan Gerrits, Billy Hawkes, Macey Johansson, Isaac May, Kahlia Phillips, Holly Shiels, Milla 

Tan, Isla Taylor, Annaliese Verkuylen, Bo Watters, Noah Winterson, Danja Worrad and Imogen Yeo.  

This reflects the depth of the youth program that has been running at Trigg for five years with the 

Youth Leadership Program.  

As part of the Youth Leadership Program other awards that are on offer to our Youth include, Youth 

Trainers, Youth Officials, Youth Coaches and Youth Age Group Managers. Those who achieved their 

Trainers, Officials, Coaches and Age Group Managers Awards were: 

Youth Coaches: Jay Kapica and Giaan Versace. 

Youth Officials: Holly Shiels 

Youth Age Group Managers: Holy Shiels 

Youth Trainers: Tamer Christou, Peyton Maguire and Giaan Versace. 

There are some who have commenced courses and just need one coaching session or on line to 

complete or attend the SLSWA recommended Youth Courses. Special thanks go to Georgia Gleim, 

Morgan Buck, Holly Shiels, and Isla Taylor who are well into their Youth Trainers course who worked 

with the U 13’s at the April SRC course. Thanks to Josie Burton on coaching. 

Transitioning our U13s into Youth is a growing focus for the club and to help with this Jenny 

organises a Nipper Transition Clinic for youth members to hone their skills in coaching others how to 

paddle a long board. This was run the week over the Christmas period. It was great to see so many 

U13’s trying long boards and supported by the Youth as coaches. Our Youth coach Dave Motteram 

plays an instrumental role in this development and runs coaching sessions which includes the U13s 

throughout the season. 

As part of the Youth Program, we focussed on building a culture of Care, Respect and Teamwork. In 

order for us to do that, Jon Haines was kind enough to offer his time to provide some invaluable 

workshops on Building Character to both the youth and the youth parents. These workshops, 

combined with the generation of the Youth Advisory Group and guidance from the Youth Committee 

has formed the foundation of a great culture at the club. 

This year Trigg Island had amazing success across all aspects of Surf sports including, Rescue and 

Resuscitation, Marchpast, Boats, IRB’s, Boards, Swimming, Skis and Pool Rescue which saw so many 

do their best in competitions across the seasons resulting a huge amount of state medals being won 

and Trigg Island retaining the State Champions for the 2023/24 season.  

 

 

 

 

 



 

33 
 

Special mention to the 9 youth members who represented the Western Suns State Team including 

Billy Hawkes, Ollie Browne, Macy Boisvert, Giaan Versace, Alisha Beeney, Annika Negus, Eleanor 

Flowers, Olivia Doddy and Femke Negus. 

The Australian National Championships (Aussies) were held on the Sunshine Coast which saw 35 

Youth Member from U13’s to U19’s competed in some very tough conditions.  Congratulations to all 

those who competed with special mentions to Medal Winners including Trent Yates, Billy Hawkes, 

Olly Brown, Hudson Hort, Chris Jiang, Milly Kok, Olivia Doddy, Annika Negus, Eleanor Flowers, Macy 

Boisvert, Olivia Moar, Georgia Moar, Macey Johansson, Grace Aitchison, Sam Brigdon and Zoe 

Moore.  

The season finished on a high with many Trigg Youth recognised at the SLSWA Youth Award 

Presentations and the Trigg SLSC Annual Awards Dinner. Congratulations to the following youth for 

an outstanding year. 

SLSWA Awards 

Youth of the Year: Indiah Reidy 
U 14 Age Champion: Oliver Browne 
U 15 Age Champion: Macy Boisvert 
U 14/15 Athlete of the Year: Trent Yates  
 
Trigg Awards 

Youth Male Athlete of the Year - Trent Yates 

Youth Female Athlete of the Year – Annika Negus and Eleanor Flowers 

U 19 of the Year - Julia Suffell 

U 17 of the Year - Peyton Maguire 

U 15 of the Year - India Reidy 

U 14 of the Year - Holly Shiels 

Rising Stars – Oliver Browne and Billy Hawkes 

St Mary’s Award – Morgan Buck 

Annette Brownhill Award – Arielle Butler 

Young Lifesaver of the Year – Bo Watters 

 

Good Luck to the following Youth who have been nominated for an award in the upcoming SLSWA 

Awards of Excellence: 

Annika Negus for Athlete of the Year, Young Athlete of the Year and the Bernie Kelly Medal  

Milly Kok for Young Athlete of the Year 

Olivia Doddy for Young Athlete of the Year 

Eleanor Flowers for Young Athlete of the Year 

Annika Negus, Milly Kok and Olivia Doddy for Surf Sports Team of the Year and: 

The U23 March Past Team made up of all Youth Members for Surf Sports Team of the Year. 

 

It has been such a great year at Trigg Island and we look forward to another successful year at Trigg. 

Stay Safe.  

Mike Boisvert 
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Blue Hole 
Thank you everyone for a fantastic winter swim season. I hope you have all enjoyed the swims and 

the laughs this year.  

Statistics and Milestones 

• 72 individual swimmers  

• 20 scheduled swims. 17 actual swims with 3 cancelled due to bad weather. 

• 1 swimmer did all 17. Matt Vanderweg 

• 400 Swims – Dave Philpott 

• 300 Swims – Mark Barlow 

• 100 swims – Gerry Vanderweg 

Trigg v Scarboro Polar Bears  

Was finally hosted at Trigg Island on the 6th of August. We had 50 swimmers in the water that 

morning from both clubs and a wonderful morning tea and catch up after. TISLSC had a great win 

with our regular swimmers getting the job done. 

1st Hayden Headling, 2nd Olly Brown, 3rd Brad Headling, 4th Jett Jager-Harvey, 5th Billy Hawkes.  Trigg 

Island had the first 5 over the line and 7 of the top 10. 

Thank You’s 

• Chippy. Mike Cook. Brian and Nan Carthew. Kevin Edwards. Les Lindsay. Kimber Radford. 

Peter and Jen Taylor. Kristine Gillmore. Roy and Teresa Watkins. Michele Upfold. 

My thanks to everyone that assisted with our IRB’s and water safety. 

Ellis, Mark, Tom, Brad, Justin, Indie, Craig, Nicole, Sarah, Jake, Jayson, Julia, & Ella 

Awards 

• Boat Driver / Crew   Justin Meldrum  

A Grade 

1st Hayden Headling (57)     2nd Natalie Hawkes (50)  3rd Bo Waters (50) 

B Grade 

1st Mark Barlow (67) 2nd Peter Campbell (57)  3rd Cliff Burton (52) 

Ken Dobson Award 

• Tamer Christou 

Thank you to all the Blue Hole swimmers and helpers. I really do appreciate all of your efforts to 

make this a fun, competitive and social swim. To everyone who baked cakes, helped on the beach or 

in the kitchen and cleaned down gear and boats. This is a team effort week in, week out and I hope 

to see all of you in the water. 

Luke Upfold - Coordinator 
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List of Members 

 

Life Members 

1958 Tony Martin# 1999 Michael Cook 

1959 A E Hodgkinson# 2001 Brian Carthew 

1966 John Julian# 2003 Ronald (Barry) Cheers 

1969 Alan White 2003 William Rice# 

1969 Kevin Whitely# 2004 Karl Smith 

1972 Francis Mongan# 2005 David Somers 

1978 Peter McDonald# 2008 David Motteram 

1978 Victor McDonald# 2008 Brian (Boots) Campbell 

1982 Frank Parlevliet 2011 Justin Meldrum 

1983 Arthur Smith# 2011 Carolyn Ryan 

1983 Stanley Ward# 2014 Gloria McBride 

1983 Keith Brown# 2014 Norm Waldeck 

1985 John Somers# 2017 Paul Attenborough 

1985 Bruce Hutchinson 2017 Warren Vanalopulos 

1985 Terance Landwehr 2017 John Rhatigan 

1987 Allan Porteus 2019 Don (Chippy) Greenhill 

1987 Ian Shand 2019 Jenny Taylor 

1989 Peter Hoar# 2019 Bronwyn Meldrum 

1994 Andrew Goss 2021 Kevin Duguid 

1995 Lindsay Bistrup# 2022 Peter Taylor 

1999 Peter Atkinson 2023 Peter Savage 
 

# Deceased 
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Active Seniors 
Alibegovic Selma Armstrong Clare Armstrong Mark 
Ashworth Phoebe Baker Brody Baker Hannah 
Boisvert Chelsea Boisvert Michael Bordin Benajmin 
Bordin Danielle Bordin Timothy Bowbridge Michelle 
Brehaut Oliver Brigden Paul Broady Mark 
Browne Frank Burke Declan Burke Heather 
Burton Cliff Burton Paul Carr Tim 
Clifton Corey Cook Andrew Cook Declan 
Corkill Richelle Cox David Davey Jackson 
Davies Kaden Davies Tallis De Rooster Cris 
Doick Dianne Doick Mark Durey Tamsin 
Edwards Kevin Ferguson Aysha Ferguson Cade 
Ferguson Shani Fiore Rafael Fox Peter 
French Bianca Gardiner William Gillmore Alessandra 
Gillmore Geoffrey Glossop Stephen Gray Tahlia 
Griffin Ben Haar-Bellekom Anita Hawkes Natalie 
Hawkes Todd Hill Eva Hill Kirsten 
Howells Drew Hunter Max Hynes  Harrison 
Innocent Sascha Johnson Cooper Jolliffe Gabrielle 
Jolliffe Lauren Journet Nicholas Kapica Grant 
Kok Bart Lawson Sophie Leach Holly 
Liddell Renae Lloyd Sophie Longwood Anna 
Mahoney Paige Marchetto Hayden Marchetto Kai 
Markey Stephen McKee Rochelle McKellar Cindy 
Meyers Sam Moar Sarah Mulvay Elana 
Mulvay Indie-Lee Mulvay Kelton Mulvay Laine 
Mulvay Mark Mulvay Susan Naylor Jasmine 
Naylor Stephanie Negus Ed O’Connor Brydie 
Oudejans James Palmer Thomas Pascucci Daniela 
Pescud Mitchell Phillips Kirk Piercy Craig 
Price Risma Radford Kimberlee Ramsay Mikayla 
Rethamel Jeremy Roberts Paul Rothnie Kelton 
Ryan Clem Samia Sajih Savage Tyla 
Sheppard India-Rose Shipway Carr Jazmin Smith Jacob 
Smith Kane Stegmann Ian Stegmann Paige 
Stoffers Carl Straight Nick Tana Amanda 
Thompson Azure Toms Matthew Tyndall Peter 
Upfold Luke Van Der Weg Matthew Verkuylen Kate 
Walker Robert Wood Paige   
      
      
      
      

Active Reserve 
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Long Service 
Abbott Chris Albert Alan Alexander Andrew 
Arthur Antonia Ashworth Craig Baird Troy 
Baker Reece Bandy Douglas Barlow Mark 
Barnett Trent Beaton Madeleine Beaton Reginald 
Bennett Rodney Bloomfield Adam Boelen Bruce 
Boutle Stephen Bowbridge Matthew Bowbridge Shane 
Bowie Duncan Bowie Neil Brewer Todd 
Brooks Dean Brooks Jenny Campbell Edward 
Caren Rowan Carr Bradley Carter Douglas 
Carthew Alan Claffey Nanette Coventry Linda 
De Rooster Antoine De Rooster Ivan Donnelly Justin 
Duguid Hayley Duncan Richard English Phillip 
Foster Ken Gillmore Kristine Griffin Jonathon 
Harris Patrick Hartley Matthew Headling Bradley 
Headling David Holmes Brodie Holt David 
Host David Host Edward Host William 
Humble Ceris Humble Daniel Innocent Robert 
Jay Andrew Jolliffe Mike Jones Benjamin 
Lester Richard Lindsay Les Lynch Ellin 
Lynch Paul Mackenzie Richard Marchesani Helen 
Marriott Kenneth Martin Craig McBride Michael 
McKee Hayley McKee Robert Medica Dario 
Mosel Andrew Mosel Kate Myers Warren 
Naylor Gregory Nedkoff Lou Nicholls Alana 
Philpott David Reid David Robertson Lauren 
Rosman Brooke Rosman Grant Sabatino Luciano 
Sarson Brendon Savage Vickie Smith Jake 
Smith Lisa Stephens Jayson Sturgeon Nathan 
Taylor Lara Warne Ruby Whitaker John 
Whittle Lynne Wilson Geoff Wray-Watts Vicki 
Yeo Adam     
      

 

Youth (Under 19) 
Aitchison Ellis Bawden Rhys Bertolini Holly 
Boisvert Tom Brigden Samantha Caren Jarvis 
Davies Harper Ding Lily Doddy Joel 
Foley Liam Innocent Mikaela Jaeger-Harvey Jett 
Kok Zara Lawson James Lourey Samantha 
Moar Georgia Montgomery Logan Muir Ella 
Negus Femke Okines Jonah Parsons Kallan 
Pascall Koby Pascucci Renan Stegmann Emma 
Stoffer George Suffell Julia Toms Benjamin 
Upfold Chloe Van Geffen Neva Versace Lachlan 
Walker Lucas Winton Thomas   
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Youth (Under 17) 
 

Aitchison Grace Baird Hudson Beeney Myles 
Bosich Sian Buck Owen Christou Tamer 
Colombera Lily Comito Rocco Curtis-Smith Verity 
Doddy Olivia Dreiberg-Karanga Summer Dvorakova Betty 
Flowers Eleanor Haines Charlie Hannigan Elliot 
Hawkes Eva Headling Hayden Hemmingway Jack 
Henheffer Katie Hill Owen Johansson Marley 
Kapica Jay Kok Milly Krawczyk Harrison 
Lourey Mitchell Mackey Olivia Maguire Peyton 
Marchetto Tilly McEwen Matthew Metcalf Hamish 
Moar Olivia Monaghan Blake Moore Zoe 
Negus Annika Nelligan Blake Nguyen Benjamin 
Okines Charlie Radford Nicole Savage Chloe 
Smith Jasper Sparke Samuel Sullivan Chloe 
Thompson Lincoln Tilmouth Alison Upfold Ella 
Wonnacott Piper     
      

 

Youth (Under 15) 
 

Barbaro Bridget Beeney Alisha Boisvert Macy 
Bornmann James Bourne Maddison Buck Morgan 
Butler Arielle Clark Thomas Dines Aaron 
Dubash Zara Ferreira Ballinger Sebastian Fox Jeremiah 
Gleim Georgia Howard Grace Nelligan Rhys 
Pascucci Matheus Popp Sophia Reidy Indiah 
Sheridan Chelsea Shiels Olivia Smith Tadhg 
Van Geffen Cas Versace Giaan Walker Alex 
v Holly     
      
      
      

 

Youth (Under 14) 
 

Aitchison Jimmy Back Sian Berman Milla 
Bhatti Ibrahim Broom Kayleigh Browne Oliver 
Burton Josie Christou Dane Ford Cassandra 
Gerrits Athan Hannon Timothy Hawkes Billy 
Hort Hudson Ioannakis Taylor Jiang Chris 
Johansson Macey May Isaac Phillips Kahlia 
Schmitz Linus Cooper Shiels Holly Smith Edie 
Spiro Josh Stavretis Marcus Tan Milla 
Taylor Isla Trimboli Shahaf Verkuylen Annaliese 
Watters Bo Winterson Noah Wonnacott Mason 
Worrad Danja Yates Trent Yeo Imogen 
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Nippers 
Ahumada Lorraine Amin Laith Amin Taim 
Arias Rose Baker Georgia Baptista Ben 
Barlass Indian Bastaja Fraser Bastaja Logan 
Bates Gracie Bates Jacob Baxter Clara 
Baxter Elliott Bayndrian Ari Blackwood Mina 
Bland Sonny Bloomfield Daisy Bloomfield Jack 
Boercamp Indi Boercamp Tyson Bornmann Layla 
Botterill Charli Botterill Luca Bowbridge Isla 
Bowley Isabel Braimbridge John Brannen Ella 
Brereton Cormac Brigden Ella Broady Cora 
Broady Jesse Browne Harrison Brunu Matteo 
Buck Ashley Buck Theresa Burford Georgia 
Burton Arthur Burton Matilda Bush Leo 
Butler Jedd Butler Sam Cantelo Mya 
Carr Jedda Carr Tatum Carson Edward 
Cawthorne Dylan Champion Hendrix Champion Hunter 
Chaperon Louis Jean Charlton Hunter Chen Aidan 
Clancy Emma Clancy Toby Clark Alex 
Clarke Ollie Clements Wyn Clifton Leo 
Cohen Ella Conlon Charlie Constantaras Chloe 
Conway Gerry Cook Emily Cook Harry 
Corbett Gracie Corredor Samuel Counsel Indiana 
Cox Finlay Craigie Hannah Cross Cohen 
Cross Cooper Culley Graham Culley Harvey 
Culley Louie Cunningham Cooper Curtis-Smith Scarlett 
Davey Beau Davies Kara Davis Lucas 
Davis Max Davis Zoe Dawson Hunter 
Dawson Summer Daylight Joni Daza Frit Thaliana 
Delcanho Zac Devlin Dara Dickinson Amelia 
Dickinson Oscar Dixon Ivy Margaret Dixon Oliver Kent 
D’Souza-Cookson Evie Duez Anays Duez Elsa 
Duguid Alexander Duguid Henry Dunchue Kira 
Dunchue Zara Edinger-Reeve Henry Edwards Finn 
Edwards Layla Emmott Jake Etter Franklin 
Falkingham Harry Farias Rafael Flett Evelyn 
Flowers Georgia Fonti Moana Forster Maya 
Forster Remi Fryer Thomas Garces Alannah 
George Tyler Gerrits Piers Gibbison Alec 
Gibbison Arla Ging Oliver Gleadall Elias 
Glenn Madison Goldsack Natalia Goodridge Willow 
Gore Harper Gribbon Jasper Grover Alexander 
Grover Jack Gui Jayden Gundry Kerby 
Gundry Macy Hafner Santos Hugo Hafner Santos Sophie 
Haines Alby Hall Dane Hall Skye 
Hancock Benjamin Hancock Samantha Hannigan Georgia 
Hannon Lachlan Hart Cooper Hart Millie 
Hartley Emily Haston Lucy Haston Sam 
Hawtin James Hazell Sophia Headling Brodie 
Heerasing Dayita Heron Ari Heron Lyla 
Hill Kaleb Holland Finley Holland Henry 
Hort Leo Hughes Fleur Hutchings Hugh 
Hutchings Norah Iezzi Jordan Illingworth Jasper 
Illingworth Marlin Ingwersen Arya Ingwersen Ellyse 
Iry Sebastian Isles Angus Isles Duncan 
Isles Megan Israel-Dale Jamie Israel-Dale Lilly 
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Israel-Dale William James Dylan James Georgia 
James Josephine Jiang Lucas Johnston Bronx 
Johnston Etta Johnston Harriet Johnston Willow 
Johnstone Mason Kaagstroem Billie Kaneko Kei 
Kaneko Riko Kapica Zara Keamy Isobel 
Kempton Nicholas Kennedy Anikin Kennedy Mika 
Knell Bobbi Knell Harrison Knezovic Luka 
Komur Zeki Kremers Finn Kremers Kees 
Kuipers Oliver Kuipers Sebastian Kuscevic Emily 
Kuscevic Olivia Lake Carter Lake Kieran 
Lane Carter Lankester Olivia Lark Marcus 
Lark Sierra Lawson Grace Leader-Smith Conor 
Leckey Alice Leckey Mason Leishman Austin 
Lewer Alfie Lewis Morgan Libeks Sasha 
Liddell-Houghton Jace Liu Amelia Lohman Max 
Love Jasper Lovei Erik Maclean Emmi 
Maclean Zara Maideen Jaxon Mansfield Mac 
Marriette Cleo Marriette Sawyer Martin Isla 
Martin Owen Maslova Nika Maslova Tatiana 
Mason Jack Mazalica Aleksandar Mazalica Anastasija 
Mazalica Predrag McArthur Jude McArthur Willa 
McBride Ella McBride Luke McEwan Indiana 
McEwan Vander McEwen Brooklyn McEwen Jordan 
McFadzean Poppy McGinlay Calvin McGougan Isla 
McGougan Tilly McGriskin-Goad Noah McGuckin Jack 
McGuckin Ruby McGuiness Xander McKenzie Elsie 
Michelotti Alice Michelotti Simon Mickle Brayden 
Miller Will Mills Zoe Mooney Oscar 
Mooney Sorcha Mosel Bodhi Mosel Kaia 
Mottalini Tommaso Mouritz Celia Murabito Luke 
Murphy Connor Murphy Keira Nalder Lachlan 
Naylor Jack Naylor Lily Neervoort Ellie 
Nelligan Nina Nguyen Jenna Nguyen Samson 
Nichols Maximilian Noakes Tommy Nurse Loralei 
O’Connell Alfie Odonoghue Leo O’Donovan Grace 
Ogilvie Georgia O’Hara Harrison O’Hara Hudson 
Oldfield Elliott Oldfield Logan O’Leary Evelyn 
O’Leary William Olivieri Declan O’Reilly Indiana 
Ormsby Harlow Ormsby Hugh O’Shea Oskar 
O’Sullivan Djari O’Sullivan Luka Oxley James 
Oxley William Pacifici Luca Palfrey Harrison 
Palmer Sadie Pang Luke Pantaleo Matteo 
Patterson Gracie Patterson Isabella Pattinson Lily 
Pattinson Noah Peatt Asha Peatt Rosalie 
Phillips Beau Polly Zephyr Porter Eli 
Potts Elvi Powell Harper Powell Ivy 
Prenter Alfie Prenter Charlie Prenter Oscar 
Quijada Gonzalez Camila Quinn Aksel Radaic Alexi 
Radaic Cooper Rahmani Isaac Ramsay Olive 
Reade Kinzee Redden Juniper Rees Poppy 
Rego Mafalda Reid Isabel Richards Isabelle 
Roberts Angus Roberts Arthur Roberts  Christopher 
Roberts Samuel Roberts-Loosjes Lola Roberts-Loosjes Luxton 
Robertson Lachlan Robertson Stephanie Robins Astrid 
Rodziewicz Jaxen Rose Emily Rose Isabella 
Rosman Brylee Rosman Ebony Ross Flynn 
Ross Huxley Rouse Cooper Russell Isabel 
Rymarczyk Timothy Sainsbury Xavier Salisbury Ivy 
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Sanger Annie Sanger Tahlia Saraceni Rafael 
Sarson Jake Sarson Koa Sarson Thomas 
Saul Matilda Savas Harper Savas Zachary 
Scantlebury Sonny Scarr Sophie Schmidiger Kai 
Schmitz Mingus Cobie Sharpe Ivy Sheridan Olivia 
Shields Blayke Shields Brooke Shiels Daisy 
Shilton Lachlan Shilton Riley Skirving Levi 
Skirving Oscar Smart Eleanor Smith Catherine 
Soltys Charlotte Sparks Lucy Speranza Lucy 
Speranza Oliver Spiro Zeph Stafford Fraser 
Stafford Lachlan Stavretis Zara Stojanoski Preston 
Straight Hawaii-Skye Surman Ivy Surman Lily 
Sutcliffe Summer Tan Jesse Tana Ruby 
Taylor Evelyn Taylor Vincent Taylor Walter 
Terris Jack Thomas Caldeira Filipe Thompson Savannah 
Timmins Oisin Titmus-Stubbs Imogen Tjioe Oscar 
Tjioe Winnie Tomassi Isabel Midori Tonkin Hector 
Trend Zoe Tribe Evelyn Tribe Lewis 
Trichilo Lillia Trichilo Penelope Trimboli Evan 
Trimboli Gome Trott Indi Trott Stevie 
Tucker Ashton Tucker Mitchell Tussler Ajay 
Verkuylen Leon Vimercati Lily Viskovic Tom 
Volk Grace Volk Leah Waddingham Kane 
Wade Finley Wade Riley Wahby Lilah 
Wakefield Isaac Waldeck Noah Ward Louie 
Watters Mia Webber Alexia Webber Eddie 
Wells Lilah West Archie Whitney Tatum 
Wilczynski Henryk Wilson Grace Wilson Molly 
Winchester Brayden Withers Bailey Withers Sienna 
Wolfe Florence Wong Wyatt Woodcock Ariah 
Woodhouse Sienna Woods Olivia Woods Stevie 
Yeo Tobin Young Asher Young Lachlan 
Zaffino Paea Zhang Kevin Zhuang Careena 
Zuvela Hana Zuvela Noah   
      

Parents 
Ahumada Michael Aitchison John Aitchison Natasha 
Aldred Maree Amin Mohamed Amin Nisreen 
Arcari Sandra Arias Paul Baptista Marcela 
Barlass David Bastaja Jason Bates Hunter 
Bawden Scott Baxter Allison Baxter Lyndon 
Bayndrian Adele Beeney Mike Berman Rachel 
Blackwood David Bland Clay Boercamp Ellie 
Boercamp Scott Bornmann Jo Botterill Amy 
Botterill Ewan Bowbridge Brett Bowley Jon 
Braimbridge Philip Brannen Carl Brassington Michelle 
Brigden Sally Broady Bethan Brown-Neaves Tiffany 
Brunzu Marco Buck Laura Buck Martin 
Buck Michael Burford Steven Bush Chris 
Butler Brad Bwire Doreen Cantelo Nerida 
Carr Melinda Carson Renae Carthew Nannette 
Cawthorne Tanya Champion Trent Chaperon Matthew  
Charlton Ben Charlton Natalie Cipriani Petra 
Clancy Ashley Clark Sally Clarke Alexandra 
Clements Sevrin Cohen John Conlon Cathal 
Constantaras Spiros Conway Caroline Counsel David 
Corbett Dwayne Craigie John Cross Ron 
Cullen Jenny Culley Bree Culley Sara-Jade 
Cunningham Jack Dale Pryce Davey Greg 
Davis-Trimboli Liat Davies Ben Davies Chris 
Davis Jason Daylight Sarah Daza Boris 
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Delcanho Blake Devlin Eric Dickinson Mark 
Dixon Kent D’Souza Sandra Duez Jean-Philippe 
Duggan Barbara Edinger-Reeve Tamara Edwards Darren 
Emmott Tim Etter Daniel Falkingham Jason 
Farias Thiago Flett Tom Fonti Briony 
Forster Bec Fowkes Carly Fryer Michael 
Garces Julia George Steele Gerrits Bryce 
Gibbison Niki Gibbs Carol Gibbs Norman 
Ging Brian Gleadall Auriana Gleeson Deirdre 
Glenn Stuart Goad Robert Goldsack Elaina 
Goodridge Nicholas Gore Billy Gribbon Liam 
Griffin Daryl Griffin Russell Gundry Scott 
Hall Faith Hancock Amanda Hancock Kimberlie 
Hannigan Andrew Hannigan Jill Hannon Gregory 
Hardingham Nadine Harrington Paul Harrison Claire 
Hart Sheloe Haston Laura Hawtin Erin 
Haydon Barry Hazell Katharine Headling Nicola 
Heerasing Ashwin Helmis Katerina Hernandez Maria 
Ho Linty Holland Todd Hort Matt 
Hughes Claire Hughes Simon Hunter Jill 
Hutchings Catherine Hutchings Tom Iezzi Joe 
Illingworth Jay Ingwersen Nicholas Ioannakis Michael 
Ireland Ruth Iry Glenn Isles Chris 
Isles Gail Israel Todd James Kate 
Jiang Liang Johansson Karl Johnson Norman 
Johnston Brendan Johnston Danielle Johnstone Mark 
Kaagstroem Jonas Kaneko Jun Kapica Jo 
Kay Gemma Keamy Giles Kempton Jodie 
Kennedy Wayne Knell Alan Knezovic Ivan 
Komur Zekai Kremers Kees Kuipers Adam 
Kuscevic Ivan Kuscevic Leah Lake Elizabeth 
Lake Martin Lammers Sylvana Lane Duncan 
Lark Ash Larter Tony Lawson Michael 
Leckey Belinda Leckey Cameron Leishman Natalie 
Lewer Danni Lewis Charlotte Libeks Alex 
Lin Gina Lohman Aaron Loosjes Saskia 
Lourey Martin Love Angela Lovei Levente 
Maclean Steve Maideen Hussain Mansfield Barry 
Marriette Caroline Marriette Simon Martin Russell 
Maslova Natalia Mason Matt Masson Kristen 
May Phil Mccann Sonya McEwan Jimmy 
McEwen Brad McFadzean Bryan Mcginley Joe 
McGougan Callum McGuckin Andrew McGuiness Hayley 
Mendoza Vanessa Mickel Emily Millan Nancy 
Mills Brennen Milton Kaye Moar Brian 
Moar Rita Moiler Adam Monaghan Amanda 
Monaghan Richard Mooney Rachel Moore Tony 
Mosel Rebecca Mouritz Joel Murabito Amanda 
Nalder Sven Naylor Michael Neervoort Leonie 
Nelligan Lindsay Nguyen Hung Nguyen Maureen 
Nichols Jessica Nielsen Anna Noakes James 
Nurse Lisle O’Donoghue Grant O’Donovan Amanda 
Ogilvie Shane O’Hara Gavin Okines Andrew 
Okines Lynne Oldfield Peter O’Leary Mark 
Olivieri Anthony O’Reilly Elise Ormsby Leah 
Ormsby Tom O’Sullivan Greg Oxley Gordon 
Oxley Kenslee Pacifici Dario Palfrey Shane 
Palmer Scott Pang Richard Pascucci Renato 
Patterson Gary Pattinson Matthew Peatt Ben 
Pedruzzi Rebecca Phillips Shane Potts Charlie 
Powell Alexa Prenter Lynn Quajada Gallardo Rafael 
Quinn Jason Rahmani Anas Ramsay Grant 
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Reade Nicolas Redden Tony Rees Daniel 
Rego Frederico Reid Chris Richards Ian 
Roberts Corinne Roberts Jonathon Roberts Sarah 
Robertson Anthony Robins Paul Rose Carranya 
Rose Tom Rouse Adam Rowe Jessica 
Russell Sarah Sainsbury Kathryn Salisbury Robert 
Sanger Grant Santos Victor Hugo Saraceni Felicity 
Sassone Ilaria Saul Matt Savas Michael 
Scarr Kynan Schmidiger Reto Schmitz Janne 
Segreto Valentina Shi Xuan Shields Tyrone 
Shiels Emma Skirving Daniel Skirving Kylee 
Smart Christopher Smart Heidi Smith David 
Smith Eric Smith Melanie Smith Rowena 
Soltys Andrew Speranza Anna Speranza Richard 
Spiro Jason Spiro Sonja Stafford Lauren 
Stegmann Belinda Stojanoski Daniel Straight Melissa 
Strickland Krishna Stubbs Cassie Surman Brett 
Sutcliffe John Wesley Szczepaniak Barbara Tan Kate 
Taylor Andrew Taylor Eleanor Taylor Helen 
Terris Danica Thomas Valerie Thompson Natalie 
Thornton Melissa Tilmouth Elizabeth Timmins Rachel 
Tjioe Joshua Toms Andrew Toms Angela 
Tonkin Joanne Trend John Trichilo Alex 
Trichilo Fabio Trott Ryan Tsang-Lark Peggy 
Tucker Claire Tucker Mark Turner Louise 
Tytler Amanda Upfold Michele Valenti Guliana 
Van Den Akker Stacey Van Geffen Leon Verkuylen Michael 
Vimercati Ed Vimercati Monique Viskovic Boris 
Vogler Karen Vogler Lin Volk Paul 
Volk Pippa Waddingham William Wade Charlotte 
Wahby Jodie Wakefield Gemma Waldeck Marie 
Waldeck Scott Walker Sarah Ward Thomas 
Watkins Roy Watkins Teresa Webber Tom 
Wells Daniel West Justin Whitney Rachelle 
Wilkins Susan Williamson Lee Wilson Leanne 
Wilson Travis Winchester Laura Withers Simone 
Wolfe Simon Wonnacott Kerry Woodcock Nyasha 
Woodhouse Marina Woods Samuel Woodward Emma 
Young Andrew Young Thea Yu Amy 
Zaffino Donna Zapata Daniela Zhang Mingjun 
Zhuang Andy Zois Nektaria Zuvela Andrija 
      
      

Parents with Gym 
Bright Phillip Burton Travis Dines Andre 
Hunter Jeremy McArthur Jeremy Ross Ashley 
Scantlebury Ryan Whitney Adam   
      
      

Community with Gym 
Arundel Matthew Carey Dom Christie Matthew 
Edwards Ron Kleiber Christopher Loan Barry 
Loan Mitch Michelson Tony Northend Rod 
Rickard James Robbins Cam Stewart Brent 
Tartaglia Alessandro Tolley Adrian   
      

Community 
Campbell Peter Eastwood Joyce Komadina Anya 
Van der Weg Gerry     
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Probationary 
Booth Michael Cas Cece Lynam Antony 
Reidy Jed Rigg Sam   
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Patrol Captains and Vice-Captains 
 

Attenborough    Campbell  

Patrol Captain  Aysha Ferguson  Patrol Captain  Mark Armstrong 

Vice-Captain Robert Walker  Vice-Captain Samantha Lourey 

     

Carnival   Carnival 2  

Patrol Captain John Whitaker  Patrol Captain Madeleine Beaton 

Vice-Captain Andrew Alexander  Vice-Captain - 

     

Cook   Goss  

Patrol Captain Craig Piercy  Patrol Captain Paul Roberts 

Vice-Captain -  Vice-Captain - 

     

Meldrum   Motteram  

Patrol Captain Peter Savage  Patrol Captain Stephanie Naylor 

Vice-Captain Sophie Lloyd  Vice-Captain - 

Vice-Captain Tyla Savage    

     

Parlevliet   Porteus  

Patrol Captain Sophie Lawson  Patrol Captain Jasmine Naylor 

Vice-Captain Kai Marchetto  Vice-Captain Selma Alibegovic 

Vice-Captain Sarah Moar    

     

Rhatigan   Ryan  

Patrol Captain Lauren Jolliffe  Patrol Captain David Cox 

Vice-Captain Gabrielle Jolliffe  Vice-Captain Georgia Moar 

   Vice-Captain Femke Negus 

     

Smith   Somers  

Patrol Captain Grant Rosman  Patrol Captain Bart Kok 

Vice-Captain Alessandra Gillmore  Vice-Captain Ed Negus 

     

Taylor   Waldeck  

Patrol Captain Clare Armstrong  Patrol Captain Timothy Bordin 

Vice-Captain Tahlia Gray  Vice-Captain - 
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Member Patrol Hours 
Abbott Chris 29.5 Aitchison Ellis 32.5 

Aitchison Grace 29 Aitchison Jimmy 25 

Aldred Maree 4 Alexander Andrew 30 

Alibegovic Selma 26 Armstrong Clare 36.75 

Armstrong Mark 99 Ashworth Phoebe 0 

Back Sian 31 Baird Hudson 25.25 

Baker Hannah 8.5 Bandy Douglas 21.5 

Barbaro Bridget 33 Barlow Mark 21.5 

Bastaja Jason 27 Bawden Rhys 25 

Beaton Madeleine 16.5 Beaton Reginald 2 

Beeney Alisha 31 Beeney Myles 25.67 

Berman Milla 25.5 Bertolini Hollie 0 

Bloomfield Adam 16 Boercamp Ellie 2 

Boercamp Scott 8 Boisvert Chelsea 25 

Boisvert Macy 46 Boisvert Michael 37.5 

Boisvert Tom 31 Bordin Benjamin 30.5 

Bordin Danielle 34.5 Bordin Timothy 22 

Bornmann James 26 Bosich Sian 30 

Bourne Maddison 26 Boutle Stephen 22 

Bowbridge Brett 6 Bowie Neil 8.5 

Bowley Jon 4 Braimbridge Phillip 14 

Brigden Paul 28 Brigden Samantha 21 

Broady Bethan 8 Broady Mark 9.5 

Brooks Dean 21.5 Brooks Jenny 13.5 

Broom Kayleigh 27 Browne Frank 29 

Browne Oliver 32 Buck Martin 20 

Buck Michael 8 Buck Morgan 39 

Burke Declan 27.5 Burke Heather 20 

Burton Cliff 25.5 Burton Josie 34.5 

Burton Paul 34.5 Butler Arielle 33.5 

Butler Brad 19 Campbell Brian 38 

Campbell Edward 30.5 Caren Jarvis 25.5 

Carr Tim 12 Chaperon Matthew 8 

Christou Dane 40 Christou Tamer 29 

Claffey Nanette 16.5 Clancy Ashley 12 

Clark Sally 20 Clark Thomas 25 

Colombera Lily 25 Comito Rocco 28 

Cook Andrew 7.5 Cook Declan 25 

Cox David 30 Curtis-Smith Verity 21.5 

Davey Greg 22 Davey Jackson 7.87 

Davies Ben 6 Davies Harper 29.5 

Davies Kaden 30 Davies Tallis 22.5 

Davis Jason 18 De Rooster Cris 30 

De Rooster Ivan 3.5 Devlin Eric 31 

Dines Aaron 30 Ding Lily 21 

Doick Dianne 38.5 Doick Mark 34.5 

Dubash Zara 9 Duez Elsa 2 

Duguid Hayley 13 Duguid Kevin 11 

Durey Tamsin 43 Dvorakova Betty 12.5 

Edwards Kevin 12.5 Emmott Tim 20 

Etter Daniel 6 Farias Thiago 10 

Ferguson Aysha 29 Ferguson Cade 29.5 

Ferguson Shani 4.5 Fiore Rafael 8.5 

Flett Tom 10 Flowers Eleanor 36 

Foley Liam 4.5 Ford Cassandra 19.5 

Fowkes Carly 11 Fox Jeremiah 17.5 

Fox Peter 22 French Bianca 13 
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Garces Julia 10 George Steele 20 

Gerrits Athan 39.5 Gillmore Alessandra 18 

Gillmore Geoffrey 26.5 Gleim Georgia 41 

Glenn Stuart 12 Glossop Stephen 12.5 

Goad Robert 15 Goodridge Nicholas 2 

Gray Tahlia 31.5 Griffin Ben 31 

Haar-Bellekom Anita 12.5 Haines Charlie 21.5 

Hannigan Andrew 17 Hannigan Elliot 31.5 

Hannon Gregory 14 Hannon Timothy 18 

Hartley Matthew 16 Hawkes Billy 23.5 

Hawkes Eva 34.5 Hawkes Natalie 29.5 

Hawkes Todd 25 Headling Bradley 4.5 

Headling Hayden 27 Headling Nicola 10 

Hemmingway Jack 24.5 Henheffer Katie 4 

Hill Eva 25.5 Hill Kirsten 42.75 

Hill Owen 17.5 Hort Hudson 21.5 

Hort Matt 18 Howard Grace 15.5 

Howells Drew 8.5 Humble Ceris 4.5 

Hunter Max 30 Hutchings Tom 18 

Hynes Harrison 21 Innocent Mikaela 28.5 

Innocent Robert 2 Innocent Sascha 23.5 

Ioannakis Taylor 12.5 Isles Chris 10 

Israel Todd 22 Jaeger-Harvey Jett 17 

Jiang Chris 31.5 Johansson Macey 38 

Johansson Marley 34 Johnston Brendan 2 

Johnstone Mark 16 Jolliffe Gabrielle 37.5 

Jolliffe Lauren 33.5 Kapica Grant 34.5 

Kapica Jay 27.5 Kok Bart 32 

Kok MIlly 29 Kok Zara 24.5 

Komur Zekai 18 Lake Elizabeth 20 

Lake Martin 14 Lawson James 21 

Lawson Michael 16 Lawson Sophie 26 

Leach Holly 31.5 Liddell Renae 40 

Lloyd Sophie 29.5 Longwood Anna 27 

Lourey Mitchell 36.5 Lourey Samantha 35.5 

Lynch Paul 3.5 Mackey Olivia 30 

Maguire Peyton 58 Mahoney Paige 20.5 

Marchesani Helen 2.5 Marchetto Kai 24 

Marchetto Tilly 25 Markey Stephen 35.5 

May Isaac 37.5 McBride Michael 23 

McEwen Matthew 11.5 McGougan Callum 16 

McGuckin Andrew 15 McGuiness Hayley 4 

McKee Robert 18 McKee Rochelle 25 

McKellar Cindy 29 Meldrum Justin 45.75 

Mendoza Vanessa 2 Metcalf Hamish 25 

Meyers Sam 29 Moar Georgia 34 

Moar Olivia 28.5 Moar Sarah 43.5 

Monaghan Blake 29 Montgomery Logan 28.5 

Moore Zoe 25 Mosel Andrew 9 

Mosel Kate 6 Muir Ella 26.5 

Mulvay Elana 3.5 Mulvay Indie-Lee 34.5 

Mulvay Kelton 8.5 Mulvay Laine 21 

Mulvay Mark 51.25 Mulvay Susan 31 

Naylor Jasmine 31 Naylor Stephanie 29.5 

Negus Annika 25 Negus Ed 20.5 

Negus Femke 20.5 Nelligan Blake 29 

Nelligan Rhys 25.5 Nguyen Benjamin 14 

Noakes James 32 O’Connor Brydie 20 

Okines Charlie 29 Okines Jonah 33 
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Oldfield Peter 12 Oudejans James 63.58 

Parsons Kallan 29.5 Pascall Koby 0 

Pascucci Daniela 34 Pascucci Renan 3.5 

Pescud Mitchell 7 Phillips Kahlia 26.75 

Phillips Kirk 44.75 Philpott David 37.5 

Piercy Craig 40.5 Popp Sophia 25.33 

Price Risma 27 Quijada Gallardo Rafael 16 

Radford Kimberlee 50.5 Radford Nicole 38 

Ramsay Grant 6 Ramsay Mikayla 21 

Edden Tony 12 Reid David 3 

Reidy Indiah 47 Rethamel Jeremy 26 

Rhatigan John 43.5 Rigg Charlotte 21.5 

Roberts Corine 9 Roberts Jonathon 26 

Roberts Paul 34 Robertson Anthony 25 

Robertson Lauren 13 Rosman Brooke 4 

Rosman Grant 34.73 Rothnie Kelton 21.5 

Rouse Adam 2 Ryan Carolyn 7 

Ryan Clem 4.5 Sabatino Luciano 25 

Samia Sajih 52.17 Santos Victor Hugo 18 

Sarson Brendon 8 Savage Chloe 26 

Savage Peter 36 Savage Tyla 25 

Scarr Kynan 12 Sheridan Chelsea 40 

Shields Tyrone 18 Shiels Holly 39 

Shiels Olivia 49.5 Shipway-Carr Jazmin 31.5 

Smith David 14 Smith Edie 31 

Smith Jacob 25.5 Smith Tadhg 4 

Sparke Samuel 27 Spiro Josh 13 

Stavretis Marcus 25.5 Stegmann Emma 20 

Stegmann Ian 24.5 Stegmann Paige 24.5 

Stephens Jayson 27.5 Stoffers Carl 35.5 

Stoffers George 25 Straight Melissa 14 

Straight Nick 23 Suffell Julia 78.73 

Surman Brett 27 Sutcliffe John Wesley 10 

Tan Kate 20 Tan Milla 31.5 

Tana Amanda 17 Taylor Isla 39 

Taylor Jenny 46.5 Taylor Lara 4 

Taylor Peter 46.25 Tilmouth Alison 38.5 

Toms Benjamin 25 Toms Matthew 25.5 

Trend Peter 14 Trott Ryan 10 

Tyndall Peter 26 Upfold Chloe 12 

Upfold Ella 36.25 Upfold Luke 42.75 

Van Der Weg Matthew 29.5 Van Geffen Cas 20.5 

Vanalopulos Warren 21 Verkuylen Annaliese 44 

Verkuylen Kate 34 Versace Giaan 35 

Volk Pippa 3 Walker Alex 21 

Walker Lucas 21.5 Walker Robert 25 

Ward Thomas 12 Watters Bo 29 

Webber Tom 15 Whitaker John 43.5 

Winterson Noah 27.5 Winton Thomas 30.5 

Wonnacott Holly 33.5 Wonnacott Mason 26.5 

Wonnacott Piper 40 Wood Paige 16 

Woods Samuel 11 Worrad Danja 27.5 

Yeo Adam 53.92 Yeo Imogen 37 
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Club Award Winners 
Mike Cook Perpetual Trophy Annika Negus 

Campbell Cook Perpetual Trophy Luke Upfold 

Linfox Junior Water Safety Award Jason Bastaja 

Junior Parent Helper Award  James Noakes 

Female and Male Youth Athlete of the Year Eleanor Flowers, Annika Negus and Trent Yates 

Female and Male Athlete of the Year Jazmin Shipway Carr and Harrison Hynes 

Trainer of the Year Kevin Edwards 

Assessor of the Year John Rhatigan 

Youth Lifesaver of the Year Bo Watters 

Lifesaver of the Year Sajih Samia 

Patrol Captain of the Year John Whitaker 

Life Members Rising Star Award Oliver Browne and Billy Hawkes 

Annette Greenhill Award Arielle Butler 

The Spirit of St Mary’s Award Morgan Buck 

U/14 Best Club Person Holly Shiels 

U/15 Best Club Person Indiah Reidy 

U/17 Best Club Person Peyton Maguire 

U/19 Best Club Person Julia Suffell 

Karrinyup Rotary “Service Above Self” Award Jenny Taylor 

Open Best Club Person Kirk Phillips 

 

Western Suns Open & Youth Ocean/Beach Interstate Team 

Representatives 
Daniel Humble  Ben Jones  Jasmin Shipway Carr Femke Negus 

Annika Negus  Eleanor Flowers  Olivia Doddy 

Western Suns Youth Team Representatives 
Macy Boisvert  Giaan Versace  Alisha Beeney  Billy Hawkes 

Oliver Browne  Trent Yates 

Super Surf League Team Representatives 
Kai Marchetto  Ben Jones  Jazmin Shipway Carr Femke Negus 

Annika Negus  Eleanor Flowers  Paige Wood  Olivia Doddy 

Western Suns Pool Rescue State Team Representatives 
Jake Smith  Harrison Hynes  Kelton Rothnie  Eleanor Flowers 
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Club Award Winners – Nippers 
Nipper Achiever Award Sam Butler 
  
Under 6  
Best Club Person The Islander Award 
Hunter Dawson and Celia Mouritz Jasper Gribbon and Zoe Trend 
  
Under 7  
Best Club Person The Islander Award 
Fraser Bastaja and Ivy Dixon Jesse Tan and Clara Baxter 
  
Under 8  
Best Club Person The Islander Award 
William Israel-Dale and Olivia Woods Jaxon Maideen and Lyla Heron 
  
Under 9  
Best Club Person The Islander Award 
Beau Davey and Hawaii-Skye Straight Luke McBride and Lola Roberts-Loosjes 
  
Under 10  
Best Club Person The Islander Award 
Gerry Conway and Stevie Woods Lachlan Robertson and Isabel Midori Tomassi 
  
Under 11  
Best Club Person The Islander Award 
Jedd Butler and Macy Gundry Tobin Yeo and Kira Dunchue 
  
Under 12  
Best Club Person The Islander Award 
Jake Emmott and Grace Lawson Cormac Brereton and Camila Quijada Gonzalez 
  
Under 13  
Best Club Person The Islander Award 
Sam Butler and Mia Watters Tom Viskovic and Catherine Smith 
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Surf Lifesaving Australia – Awards of Excellence 
 

Surf Sports Athlete of the Year – Jake Smith 
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Surf Lifesaving WA – Awards of Excellence 
 

Coach of the Year - Andrew Mosel 

Athlete of the Year – Jake Smith 

Community Education Program of the Year – Silver Salties 

Hall of Fame Inductee – Reece Baker 
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Surf Lifesaving WA – Nipper and Youth Awards 
 

Youth of the Year – Indiah Reidy 

U14/15 Athlete of the Year – Trent Yates 
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Australian Pool Rescue Championships 

Medallists  

Gold 
Name Event 
Jake Smith Open Male200m Super Lifesaver 
 Open Male 50m Manikin Carry 
 Open Male 100m Rescue Medley – Australian Record 
Harrison Hynes Open Male 100m Manikin Carry with Fins – Australian 

Record 
 Open Male 50m Swim with Fins – Australian Record 
Harrison Hynes/Kelton Rothnie/Jeremy Rethamel/Jake Smith Open Male 4x50m Obstacle Relay 
 Open Male 4x25m Manikin Relay 
 Open Male 4x50m Medley Relay 
  

Silver 
Name Event 
Jake Smith Open Male 200m Obstacle Race 
 Open Male 100m Manikin Tow with Fins 
Kelton Rothnie U19 Male 50m Swim with Fins 
 U19 Male 100m Rescue Medley 
Eleanor Flowers U15 Female 200m Super Lifesaver 
Harrison Hynes/Jake Smith Open Male Line Throw 
  

Bronze 
Name Event 
Jake Smith Open Male 100m Manikin Carry with Fins 
 Open Male 50m Swim with Fins 
Harrison Hynes Open Male 200m Obstacle Race 
 Open Male 100m Manikin Tow with Fins 
 Open Male 200m Super Lifesaver 
 Open Male 50m Manikin Carry 
Kelton Rothnie U19 Male 200m Obstacle Race 
 U19 Male 50m Manikin Carry 
 U19 Male 100m Manikin Carry with Fins 
Eleanor Flowers U15 Female 100m Manikin Tow with Fins 
 U15 Female 50m Manikin Carry 
 U15 Female 100m Manikin Carry with Fins 
 U15 Female Rescue Medley 
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Australian Championships 

Medallists  

Gold 
Name Event 
Oliver Browne U14 Male Surf Race 
 U14 Male 2km Ocean Swim 
Trent Yates U14 Male Beach Sprint 
 U14 Male Beach Flags 
Grace Aitchison/Macy Boisvert/Samantha Brigden/Eva 
Hawkes/Macey Johansson/Marley Johansson/Milly Kok/Olivia 
Moar/Georgia Moar/Zoe Moore/Annika Negus/Femke Negus 

U23 Mixed March Past 

Olivia Doddy/Milly Kok/Annika Negus U17 Female Board Relay 
Billy Hawkes/Hudson Hort/Chris Jiang/Trent Yates U13/14 Male Beach Relay 
  

Silver 
Name Event 
Billy Hawkes U14 Male 2km Ocean Swim 
Eleanor Flowers U17 Female 2km Ocean Swim 
Eleanor Flowers/Zoe Moore/Annika Negus U17 Female Taplin Relay 
  

 

Bronze 
Name Event 
Billy Hawkes U14 Male Surf Race 
Oliver Browne/Billy Hawkes/Hudson Hort/Trent Yates U13/14 Male Cameron Relay 
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Finalists 
Name Event 
Jazmin Shipway Carr Open Female Single Ski 
Max Hunter Open Male Surf Race 
Eleanor Flowers Open Female Surf Race 
 U17 Female Surf Race 
Olivia Doddy U17 Female Surf Race 
Milly Kok U17 Female Board Race 
Annika Negus U17 Female Board Race 
Zoe Moore U17 Female Single Surf Ski 
Macy Boisvert U15 Female Board Race 
Alisha Beeney U15 Ironwoman 
Giaan Versace U15 Female Beach Flags 
Oliver Browne U14 Male Board Race 
 U14 Ironman 
Billy Hawkes U14 Ironman 
Bo Watters U14 Male 2km Beach Run 
Milla Tan U14 Female 2km Beach Run 
Mia Watters U13 Female 2km Beach Run 
India Murphy U13 Female 2km Beach Run 
Reece Baker/Daniel Humble/Brendon Sarson Open Male Single Ski Relay 
Drew Howells/Brendon Sarson Open Male Double Ski 
Ceris Humble/Paige Wood Open Female Double Ski 
Femke Negus/Jazmin Shipway Carr Open Female Double Ski 
Ceris Humble/Jazmin Shipway Carr/Paige Wood Open Female Single Ski Relay  
Reece Baker/Eleanor Flowers/Max Hunter/Ben Jones/Annika 
Negus/Jasmin Shipway Carr 

Open Mixed Taplin Relay 

Tom Boisvert/Blake Monaghan U19 Male Double Ski Race 
Tom Boisvert/Joel Doddy/Drew Howells U19 Male Single Ski Relay 
Samantha Brigden/Zoe Moore U19 Female Double Ski 
Samantha Brigden/Georgia Moar/Femke Negus U19 Female Board Relay 
Samantha Brigden/Zoe Moore/Femke Negus U19 Female Single Ski Relay 
Milly Kok/Annika Negus U17 Female Board Rescue 
Alisha Beeney/Macy Boisvert/Macey Johansson U14/15 Female Board Relay 
Alish Beeney/Macy Boisvert/Josie Burton/Giaan Versace U14/15 Female Cameron Relay 
Macy Boisvert/Josie Burton/Milla Tan/Giaan Versace U14/15 Female Beach Relay 
Macy Boisvert/Hudson Hort/Giaan Versace/Trent Yates U14/15 Mixed Beach Relay 
Oliver Browne/Billy Hawkes/Bo Watters U13/14 Male Board Relay 
Milla Tan/Mia Watters U13/14 Female 2x1km Beach Relay 
Josie Burton/India Murphy U13/14 Female 2x1km Beach Relay 
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Australian Masters’ Championships 

Medallists 

Gold 
Name Event 
Bradley Headling 50-43 years Male Board Race 
Michael Cook 75 years and over Male Surf Race 
 75 years and over 2km Ocean Swim 
Bradley Headling/Andrew Mosel/Luke Upfold 130yrs+ Male Board Relay 
  

Silver 
Name Event 
Andrew Mosel 40-44 years Male Board Race 
 40-44 years Surf Race 
Daniel Humble 40-44 years Male Single Ski 
Luke Upfold 50-59 years Male Short Board Riding 
Lauren Robertson 35-39 years Ironwoman 
Tamsin Durey 45-49 years Female Board Race 
Rochelle McKee/Lauren Robertson 35-39 years Female Board Rescue 
Rochelle McKee/Kate Mosel/Lauren Robertson 110yrs+ Female Single Ski Relay 
  

Bronze 
Name Event 
Adnrew Mosel 40-44 years Ironman 
Lauren Robertson 35-39 years Female Board Race 
 35-39 years Female Surf Race 
Rochelle McKee/Lauren Robertson 35-39 years Female Double Ski 
Rochelle McKee/Kate Mosel/Lauren Robertson 110yrs+Female Board Relay 
Dianne Doick/Tamsin Durey/Natalie Hawkes 150yrs+ Female Board Relay 
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Club Championships 
Club Marathon – Hudson Baird  800m Swim – Andrew Goss  

400m Swim – Robert Walker  1600m Swim – Andrew Goss  

    

Surf Race Male   Female  

Open Max Hunter -  

U/14 Oliver Browne Danja Worrad  

U/15 Aaron Dines Alisha Beeney  

U/17 Hayden Headling Olivia Doddy  

U/19 Joel Doddy Samantha Brigden  

Masters Brad Headling Lauren Robertson  

    

Ironperson Male Female  

Open  Max Hunter -  

U/14 Oliver Browne -  

U/15   Aaron Dines -  

U/17  Hayden Headling -  

U/19  Joel Doddy -  

Masters Luke Upfold -  

    

Board Race Male Female  

Open Max Hunter Olivia Doddy  

U/14 Noah Winterson Josie Burton  

U/15  Aaron Dines Macy Boisvert  

U/17  Blake Monaghan Olivia Doddy  

U/19  Joel Doddy -  

Masters Brad Headling Lauren Robertson  

  

Ski Male Female 

Open  Reece Baker Jazmin Shipway Carr  

U/17  Blake Monaghan Zoe Moore  

U/19  Joel Doddy Georgia Moar  

Masters David Host Rochelle McKee  

  

Beach Sprints Male Female 

Open - -  

U/14 Hudson Hort Danja Worrad  

U/15  Aaron Dines Giaan Versace  

U/17  Blake Monaghan Olivia Doddy  

U/19  Joel Doddy Femke Negus  

Masters - Tamsin Durey  

  

Beach Flags Male Female 

Open - -  

U/14 Hudson Hort Taylor Ioannakis  

U/15  Aaron Dines Giaan Versace  

U/17  Blake Monaghan Olivia Doddy  

U/19  Joel Doddy -  

Masters - Tamsin Durey  

  

Nippers Male Female 

U/8 Kerby Gundry Olivia Woods  

U/9 Finley Wade Hawaii-Skye Straight  

U/10  Gerry Conway Cora Broady  

U/11  Zeph Spiro Ebony Rosman  

U/12  Riley Wade Indi Trott  

U/13 Sam Butler Mia Watters  
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WA State Pool Rescue Championships 
Rank Club  
1 Sorrento 591 
2 Cottesloe 411 
3 Secret Harbour 410 
6 Trigg Island 180 

 

Gold 
Name Event 
Harrison Hynes Open Male 100m Manikin Carry with Fins 
 Open Male 200m Obstacle Race 
 Open Male 100m Rescue Medley 
 Open Male 50m Manikin Carry 
 Open Male 50m Swim with Fins 
Jake Smith Open Male 50m Manikin Carry 
Kelton Rothnie U19 Male 100m Manikin Carry with fins 
 U19 Male 50m Swim with Fins 
Eleanor Flowers U15 Female 100m Manikin Carry with Fins 
 U15 Female 100m Manikin Tow with Fins 
 U15 Female 200m Obstacles 
 U15 Female 50m Manikin Carry 
 U15 Female 200m Super Lifesaver 
 U15 Female 100m Rescue Medley 
Oliver Browne U13 Male 100m Obstacle Race 
 U13 Male 50m Brick Carry 
Hynes H/Jones B Open Male Line Throw 
Hynes H/Jones B/Rothnie K/Smith J Open Male 4x25 Manikin Relay 
 Open Male 4x50m Medley Relay 
 Open Male 4x50m Obstacle Relay 
  

Silver 
Name Event 
Harrison Hynes Open Male 100m Manikin Tow with Fins 
 Open Male 200m Super Lifesaver 
 Open Male 50m Manikin Carry 
Kelton Rothnie Open Male 100m Manikin Carry with Fins 
 Open Male 50m Swim with Fins 
Eleanor Flowers U15 Female 50m Swim with Fins 
Oliver Browne U13 Male 50m Swim with Fins 
Georgia Flowers U10 Female 50m Swim with Fins 
Neervoort E/Rosman B U12 Female Patient Tow with Fins 
  

Bronze 
Name Event 
Jake Smith Open Male 200m Obstacle Race 
Kelton Rothnie Open Male 100m Manikin Tow with Fins 
 Open Male 50m Manikin Carry 
Ellie Neervoort U12 Female 50m Brick Carry 
 U12 Female 100m Obstacle Race 
Georgia Flowers U10 Female 100m Obstacle Race 
 U10 Female 50m Brick Carry 
Rothnie K/Smith J Open Male Line Throw 
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WA State Endurance Championships 
Rank Club  
1 Sorrento 372 
2 Trigg Island 202 
3 Mullaloo 135 

 

Gold 
Names Event 
Femke Negus U19 Female 3.5km Board Paddle 
Joel Doddy U19 Male 3.5km Board Paddle 
Eleanor Flowers U17 Female 2km Swim 
Milly Kok U17 Female 3.5km Board Paddle 
Annika Negus U17 Female 3km Beach Run 
Oliver Browne U14 Male 2km Swim 
Milla Tan U14 Female 3km Beach Run 
Ellie Neervoort U13 Female Nipper Gold 
Rochelle McKee 30-44 Female 2km Swim 
Natalie Hawkes 45-59 Female 2km Swim 
Mark Broady 45-49 Male 1.5km Beach Run 
Luke Upfold 45-59 Male 2km Swim 
Craig Martin 60+ Male 2km Swim 
  

Silver 
Names Event 
Samantha Brigden Open Female 2km Swim 
 U19 Female 3.5km Board Paddle 
Andrew Mosel Open Male 3.5km Board Paddle 
Reece Baker Open Male 7km Single Ski 
Joel Doddy U19 Male 7km Single Ski 
Blake Monaghan U17 Male 7km Single Ski 
Hayden Headling U17 Male 2km Swim 
Zoe Moore U17 Female 7km Single Ski 
Olivia Doody U17 Female 3.5km Board Paddle 
Alisha Beeney U15 Female 3.5km Board Paddle 
Billy Hawkes U14 Male 3.5km Board Paddle 
Bo Watters U14 Male 3km Beach Run 
Sam Butler U13 Male 1.5km Beach Run 
Lauren Robertson 30-44 Female 2km Swim 
Luke Upfold 45-59 Male 3.5km Board Paddle 
  

Bronze 
Names Event 
Femke Negus Open Female3km Beach Run 
Ellis Aitchison U19 Male Single Ski 
Annika Negus U17 Female 3.5km Board Paddle 
Olivia Doddy U17 Female 2km Swim 
Billy Hawkes U14 Male 2km Swim 
Lauren Robertson 30-44 Female 1.5km Beach Run 
Dianne Doick 45-59 Female 3.5km Board Paddle 
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WA State Board Riding Championships 
Rank Club  
1 Trigg Island 88 
2 Mullaloo 19 
3 Fremantle 17 

 

Gold 
Names Event 
Alan Albert Open Male Short Board 
 Open Male Long Board 
 30-39yrs Male Short Board 
Lauren Ware Open Female Short Board 
Elana Mulvay Open Female Long Board 
Matthew McEwen U15 Male Short Board 
Alex Walker U14 Male Short Board 
Bo Watters U13 Male Short Board 
Luke Upfold 40-49yrs Male Long Board 
  

Silver 
Names Event 
Laine Mulvay Open Male Short Board 
Myles Beeney U17 Male Short Board 
Mark Mulvay 40-49yrs Male Long Board 
Luke Upfold 50yrs+ Mixed Short Board 
  

Bronze 
Names Event 
Elana Mulvay Open Female Short Board 
Mark Mulvay Open Male Long Board 
Thomas Clark U14 Male Short Board 
Todd Hawkes 30-39yrs Male Short Board 
David Host 40-49yrs Male Long Board 
 50yrs+ Mixed Short Board 
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WA State IRB Championships 
Rank Club  
1 Mullaloo 146 
2 Scarboro 106 
3 Fremantle 66 
5 Trigg Island 18 

 

Gold 
Names Event 
Tom Boisvert/Jacob Smith/Adam Yeo 35yrs+ Male Single Rescue 
  

Silver 
Names Event 
  

Bronze 
Names Event 
Ellis Aitchison/Grant Rosman/Chloe Upfold Open Male Tube Rescue 
Kirk Phillips/Grant Rosman/Julia Suffell 35yrs+ Male Single Rescue 
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WA State Masters’ Championships 
Rank Club  
1 Trigg Island 599 
2 Sorrento 583 
3 North Cottesloe 346 

Individual Medallists 

Gold  
Name Event  Name Event 
Alan Albert 35-39 Male 2km Beach Run  Dianne Doick 55-59 Female Board Race 
 35-39 Male Board Race  Carolyn Ryan 55-59 Female Single Ski 
 35-39 Ironman  Andrew Jay 60-64 Male Board Race 
Kate Mosel 40-44 Female Board Race  Reg Beaton 60-64 Ironman 
 40-44 Ironwoman   60-64 Male Surf Race 
Tasmin Durey 45-49 Female Board Race  Jenny Taylor 65-69 Female Board Race 
Brad Headling 50-54 Male Board Race   65-69 Female Single Ski 
 50-54 Ironman  Neil Bowie 65-69 Male Beach Flags 
 50-54 Male Surf Race   65-69 Male Board Race 
     

Silver  
Name Event  Name Event 
Hayley McKee 35-39 Female Beach Flags  Dianne Doick 55-59 Female Beach Sprint 
Rochelle McKee 35-39 Ironwoman  Carolyn Ryan 55-59 Female Ironwoman 
Lauren Robertson 35-39 Female Surf Race   55-59 Female Surf Race 
Kate Mosel 40-44 Female Single Ski  Mark Mulvay 55-59 Ironman 
 40-44 Female Surf Race   55-59 Male Board Race 
Tamsin Durey 45-49 Female 2km Beach Run  Luciano Sabatino 60-64 Male Beach Sprint 
 45-49 Ironwoman  Reg Beaton 60-64 Male Board Race 
Natalie Hawkes 45-49 Female Surf Race  Andrew Jay 60-64 Ironman 
Michael Boisvert 45-49 Male Surf Race  Warren Myers 65-69 Male Surf Race 
Luke Upfold 50-54 Male board Race    
 50-54 Ironman    
 50-54 Male Surf Race    
     

Bronze  
Name Event  Name Event 
Alan Albert 35-39 Male single Ski  Natalie Hawkes 45-49 Female Board Race 
Lauren Robertson 35-39 Female Board Race  Dianne Doick 55-59 Female 2km Beach Run 
 35-39 Ironwoman   55-59 Ironwoman 
Rochelle McKee 35-39 Female Surf Race  Carolyn Ryan 55-59 Female Board Race 
Renae Liddell 40-44 Female Beach Flags  Mark Doick 55-59 Ironman 
Jenny Taylor 40-44 Ironwoman  Mark Mulvay 55-59 Male Surf Race 
Meghann Tysoe 45-49 Female Single Ski  Luciano Sabatino 60-64 Male Beach Flags 
Tamsin Durey 45-49 Female Surf Race  David Host 60-64 Male Board Race 
Mark Broady 45-49 Male 2km Beach Run   60-64 Male Single Ski 
Michael Boisvert 45-49 Male Board Race  Warren Myers 65-69 Male Board Race 
   Clem Ryan 65-69 Male Single Ski 
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Team Medallists  

Gold 
Names Event 
Hawkes N/McKee R/Robertson L 110 min Female Surf Teams 
Albert A/Headling B/Upfold L 110 min Male Surf Teams 
Hawkes N/Mosel K/Ryan C 130 min Female Board Relay 
Durey K/Mosel K/Ryan C 130 min Female Surf Teams 
Headling B/Sturgeon N/Upfold L 130 min Male Taplin Relay 
Doick D/Robertson L/Ryan C 150 min Female Single Ski Relay 
Durey T/Hawkes N/Ryan C 150 min Female Taplin Relay 
Headling B/Jay A/Upfold L 150 min Male Board Relay 
Beaton R/Doick M/Mulvay M 170 min Male Board Relay 
McKee H/Robertson 35-39 Female Board Rescue 
Albert A/Mulvay M 35-39 Male Board Rescue 
Durey T/Hawkes N 45-49 Female Board Rescue 
Baird T/Boisvert M 45-49 Male Board Rescue 
Doick D/Ryan C 50-54 Female Board Rescue 
Headling B/Upfold L 50-54 Male Board Rescue 
Doick D/Ryan C 50-59 Female Double Ski 
Beaton R/Jay A 60-64 Male Board Rescue 
Beaton R/Host D 60-69 Male Double Ski 
  

Silver  
Names Event 
Durey T/McKee R/Robertson L 110 min Female Board Relay 
McKee R/Mosel K/Tysoe M 110 min Female Single Ski Relay 
McKee R/Mosel K/Robertson L 110 min Female Taplin Relay 
Boisvert C/Doick D/Tysoe M 130 min Female Taplin Relay 
Baird T/Boisvert M/Broady M 130 min Male Surf Teams 
Doick D/Radford K/Tysoe M 150 min Female Board Relay 
Albert A/Bowie N/Host D 150 min Male Board Relay 
Headling B/Jay A/Mulvay M L 170 min Male Single Ski Relay 
Boisvert M/Bowie N/Sabatino L 170 min Male Taplin Relay 
Mosel K/Tysoe M 40-49 Female Double Ski 
Broady M/Hawkes T 45-49 Male Board Rescue 
Radford K/Taylor J 50-54 Female Board Rescue 
  

Bronze 
Names Event 
Boisvert C/Doick D/Radford K 130 min Female Surf Teams 
Baird T/Boisvert M/Hawkes 103 min Male Board Relay 
Hawkes N/McKee H/Taylor J 150 min Female Single Ski relay 
Broady M/McKee R/Sabatino L 170 min Male Board Relay 
Beaton R/Host D/Sabatino L 170 min Male Single Ski Relay 
Beaton R/Burton P/Mulvay M 170 min Male Surf Teams 
Alexander A/Bennet R/Boelen B/Carr B/Savage P 220 min Male Surf Boat 
Mosel K/Tysoe M 40-44 Female Board Rescue 
Baird T/Headling B 40-49 Male Double Ski 
Headling B/Mosel K 40-49 Mixed Double Ski 
Bowie N/Sabatino L 60-64 Male Board Rescue 
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WA State Surf Rescue Championships 
Rank Club Total Points 
1 Trigg Island 165 
2 Sorrento 148 
3 Scarboro 46 

 

Gold  
Humble D/Hunter M/Mosel A/Smith J Open Male Rescue Tube Rescue 
Jake Smith Open Male Surf Bet 
Negus A/Negus F U19 Female Board Rescue 
Doddy J/Headling H U19 Male Board Rescue 
Kok M/Negus A U17 Female Board Rescue 
Butler A/Reidy I U15 Mixed 2 Person R&R 
Hawkes B/Watters B Youth Male Board Rescue 
  

Silver  
Eleanor Flowers Open Female Surf Belt 
 U17 Female Surf Belt 
Brehaut O/Cook D/Doddy J/Hynes H Open Male Rescue Tube Rescue 
Femke Negus U19 Female Surf Belt 
Bridgen S/Moore Z U19 Female Boad Rescue 
Aitchison G/Doddy O/Kok M/Moore Z U19 Female Rescue Tube Rescue 
Butler A/Reidy I/Shiels H/Shiels O/Taylor I U15 Mixed 5 Person R&R 
Browne O/Jiang C Youth Male Board Rescue 
  

 Bronze 
Marchesani H/Mosel K/Radford K/Taylor J/Verkuylen K Open Female 5 Person R&R 
Brigden S/Kok M Open Female Board Rescue 
Brigden S/Flowers E/Johansson M/Shipway Carr J Open Female Rescue Tube Rescue 
Oliver Brehaut Open Male Surf Belt 
Baird T/Marchesani H/Mosel K/Smith K/Taylor J/Wilson G Open Mixed 6 Person R&R 
Samantha Brigden U19 Female Surf Belt 
Caren J/Parsons K U19 Male Board Rescue 
Beeney A/Boisvert M Youth Female Board Rescue 
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WA State Open Championships 
Rank Club Total Points 
1 Trigg Island 871 
2 Sorrento 812 
3 City of Perth 422 

 

Individual Medallists 

Gold  
Names Event 
Annika Negus Open Female Board Race 
 Open Ironwoman 
Jazmin Shipway Carr Open Female Single Ski 
Samantha Brigden U19 Female Board Race 
Drew Howells U19 Male Single Ski 
Milly Kok U17 Female Board Race 
 U17 Female 2km Beach Run 
Olivia Doddy U17 Ironwoman 
Zoe Moore U17 Female Single Ski 
Eleanor Flowers U17 Female Surf Race 
Blake Monaghan U17 Male Board Race 
Macy Boisvert U15 Female Board Race 
 U15 Ironwoman 
 U15 Female Beach Flags 
Billy Hawkes U14 Male Board Race 
Oliver Browne U14 Male Surf Race 
 U14 Ironman 
Trent Yates U14 Male Beach Sprint 
 U14 Male Beach Flags 
  

Silver 
Names Event 
Ceris Humble Open Female Board Race 
Olivia Doddy Open Ironwoman 
 U17 Female Board Race 
 U17 Female Surf Race 
Eleanor Flowers Open Female Surf Race 
Reece Baker Open Male Single Ski 
Paige Stegmann U21 Female Single Ski 
Sam Meyers U21 Male Single Ski 
Femke Negus U19 Female Board Race 
 U19 Ironwoman 
 U19 Female Single Ski 
 U19 Female 2km Beach Run 
Samantha Brigden U19 Female Surf Race 
Joel Doddy U19 Male Board Race 
Annika Negus U17 Ironwoman 
Matthew McEwen U17 Male Beach Flags 
Alisha Beeney U15 Female Board Race 
Giaan Versace U15 Female Beach Flags 
Billy Hawkes U14 Male Surf Race 
 U14 Ironman 
Milla Tan U14 Female 2km Beach Run 
Bo Watters U14 Male 2km Beach Run 
  

Bronze 
Names Event 
Andrew Mosel Open Male 2km Beach Run 
Milly Kok Open Female Board Race 
Ben Jones Open Male Surf Race 
Kai Marchetto U21 Male Single Ski 
Samantha Brigden U19 Ironwoman 
 U19 Female 2km Beach Run 
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Femke Negus U19 Female Beach Sprint 
Annika Negus U17 Female Board Race 
 U17 Female Surf Race 
 U17 Female 2km Beach Run 
Blake Monaghan U17 Male Single Ski 
Macy Boisvert U15 Female Surf Race 
 U15 Female Beach Sprint 
Georgia Gleim U15 Female Beach Flags 
James Bornmann U15 Male Beach Sprint 
Oliver Browne U14 Male Board Race 
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Team Medallists  

Gold  
Doddy O/Kok M/Negus A Open Female Board Relay 
 U17 Female Board Relay 
Flowers E/Negus A/Shipway Carr Open Female Taplin Relay 
Humble C/Wood P Open Female Double Ski 
Humble C/Negus F/Shipway Carr J Open Female Single Ski Relay 
Flowers E/Humble D/Hunter M/Kok M/Shipway Carr 
J/Smith J 

Open Mixed Taplin Relay  

Brigden S/Butler A/Hawkes E/Johansson M/Maguire 
P/Moar G/Moar O/Moore Z/Negus A/Negus F/Stegmann 
P/Shiels O 

U23 Mixed March Past 

Bridgen S/Moore Z/Negus F U19 Female Board Relay 
 U19 Female Single Ski Relay 
Bridgen S/Kok M/Negus F U19 Female Talin Relay 
Bridgen S/Doddy O/Negus A/Negus F U19 Female Surf Teams 
Flowers E/Moore Z/Negus A U17 Female Taplin Relay 
Doddy O/Flowers E/Kok M/Negus  U17 Female Surf Teams 
Hawkes E/Moore Z/Negus A U17 Female Single Ski Relay 
Beeney A/Boisvert M/Johansson M Youth Female Board Relay 
Beeney A/Boisvert M/Gleim G/Versace G Youth Female Cameron Relay 
Browne O/Hawkes B/Hort H/Yates T Youth Male Cameron Relay 
Bornmann J/Hawkes B/Hort H/Yates T Youth Male Beach Relay 
  

Silver  
Humble C/Negus F/Shipway Carr J Open Female Board Relay 
Lloyd S/ Moar G/Wood P Open Female Taplin Relay 
Brigden S/Flowers E/Humble C/Lloyd S Open Female Surf Teams 
Baker R/Humble C/Jones B/Marchetto K/Negus A/Negus F Open Mixed Taplin Relay  
Baker R/Shipway Carr J Open Mixed Double Ski 
Aitchison G/Armstrong C/Boisvert M/Burton J/Gleim 
G/Johansson M/Kok M/Shiels H/Tan M/Taylor I/Versace 
G/Worrad D 

U23 Mixed March Past 

Hawkes E/Moar G/Moar O U19 Female Board Relay 
Doddy O/Moar G/Moore Z U19 Female Taplin Relay 
Boisvert T/Doddy J/Parsons K U19 Male Board Relay 
Doddy J/Headling H/Toms B U19 Male Taplin Relay 
Doddy J/Howells D/Toms B U19 Male Single Ski Relay 
Doddy O/Hawkes E/Kok M U17 Female Taplin Relay 
  

Bronze  
Doick D//Gillmore K/Liddell R/Longwood A/Marchesani 
H/McKellar C/Radford K/Reid D/Savage P/Smith K/Smith 
L/Taylor P 

Open Mixed Mast Past 

Bridgen S/ Moar G/Moore Z Open Female Board Relay 
Negus F/Shipway Carr Open Female Double Ski 
Alibegovic S/Baker H/Wood P Open Female Single Ski Relay 
Hunter M/Marchetto K/Mulvay K Open Male Board Relay 
Brehaut O/Hunter M/Jones B/Smith J Open Male Surf Teams 
Baker R/Humble D/Hunter M/Marchetto K/Mulvay 
K/Smith J 

Open Male Taplin Relay 

Baker R/Humble D Open Male Double Ski 
Baker R/Humble D/Sarson B Open Male single Ski Relay 
Doddy J/Howells D U19 Male Double Ski 
Boisvert T/Caren J/Parsons K U19 Male Single Ski Relay 
Aitchison G/Hawkes E/Moar O U17 Female Board Relay 
Aitchison G/Doddy O/Kok M U17 Female Single Ski Relay 
Doddy O/Moore Z/Negus A/Tilmouth A U17 Female Beach Relay 
Boisvert M/Gleim G/Versace G/Worrad D Youth Female Beach Relay 
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WA Nipper State Championships 
Rank Club Total Points 
1 Sorrento 489 
2 North Cottesloe 223 
3 Trigg Island 212 

 

Individual Medallists 

Gold  
Names Event 
Mia Watters U13 Female 1km Beach Run 
Duncan Isles U13 Male Beach Sprint 
Ebony Rosman U11 Female Beach Sprint 
Cora Broady U10 Female Beach Flags 
Gerry Conway U10 Male Beach Sprint 
 U10 Male Beach Flags 
  

Silver 
Names Event 
Ellie Neervoort U13 Female Board Race 
  

Bronze 
Names Event 
Sam Butler U13 Male 1km Beach Run 
 U13 Male Board Race 
Ellie Neervoort U13 Ironwoman 
Mia Watters U13 Female Board Race 
Ebony Rosman U11 Female Beach Flags 
Will Miller U10 Male Beach Sprint 
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Team Medallists  

Gold  
Browne H/Carr T/Flowers G/Hannigan G/Kapica 
Z/Kuscevic E/Kuscevic O/Liddel-Houghton J/Nurse 
L/Robertson S/Rosman B/Rosman E I 

All Ages Mixed March Past 

Brigden E/Kuscevic O/Neervoort E/Zaffino P U13 Female Cameron Relay 
Bridgen E/Neervoort E U13 Female Board Rescue 
Craigie H/Hafner Santos S/Hannigan G/Rosman E U11 Female Cameron Relay 
Butler J/Roberts-Loosjes L/Spiro Z U11 Male Board Relay 
Conway G/Culley G/Hutchings H/Miller W U10 Male Beach Relay 
  

Silver  
Carr T/Kuscevic O/Watters M/Zaffino P U13 Female Beach Relay 
Brigden E/Neervoort E/Watters M U13 Female Board Relay 
Butler S/Headling B/Rymarczyk U13 Male Board Relay 
Devlin D/Roberts-Loosjes L U11 Male Board Rescue 
  

Bronze  
Butler S/Headling B U13 Male Board Rescue 
Butler J/Liddell-Houghton J/Roberts-Loosjes L/Spiro Z U11 Male Cameron Relay 
Broady C/Michelotti A/Midori Tomassi I/Trott S U10 Female Beach Relay 
  

 

 

WA Little Nipper State Championships 

Individual Medallists  
  

Silver  
Kaia Mosel U8 Female Surf Race 
Finley Wade U9 Male Surf Race 
  

Bronze  
William Israel-Dale U8 Male Beach Sprint 
 U8 Male Surf Race 
Finley Wade U9 Male Board Race 
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SLSA AWARDS 
Bronze Medallion 

Baird Hudson Beeney Alisha Boisvert Macy 
Bornmann James Christou Tamer Curtis-Smith Verity 
Dines Aaron Dreiberg-Karanga Summer Dvorakova Betty 
Gardiner William Haar-Bellekom Anita Haines Charlie 
Hannigan Elliot Headling Hayden Hill Owen 
Howells Drew Kok Milly Longwood Anna 
Marchetto Tilly McEwen Matthew Nguyen Benjamin 
Noakes James Popp Sophia Shiels Olivia 
Sparke Samuel Tan Kate Tilmouth Alison 
Van Geffen Cas     
      

Surf Rescue Certificate 
Back Sian Bourne Maddison Broom Kayleigh 
Burton Josie Butler Sam Carr Tatum 
Christou Dane Dubash Zara Ford Cassandra 
Hannon Timothy Headling Brodie Hort Hudson 
Kuscevic Olivia Neervoort Ellie Phillips Kahlia 
Shiels Holly Smith Edie Spiro Josh 
Tan Milla Taylor Isla Verkuylen Annaliese 
Watters Bo Winterson Noah Wonnacott Mason 
Yates Trent     
      

IRB Crew Certificate 
Aitchison Grace Beeney Myles Broady Mark 
Burton Paul Christou Tamer Davey Jackson 
Dvorakova Betty Hannigan Elliot Hill Eva 
Liddell Renae Longwood Anna Maguire Peyton 
McEwen Matthew Savage Chloe Shiels Olvia 
      

Silver Medallion IRB Driver Certificate 
Aitchison Ellis Boisvert Tom Davey Jackson 
Mulvay Indie-Lee Phillips Kirk Smith Jacob 
      

Rescue Water Craft (RWC) Operator 
Davey Jackson Hartley Matthew   
      

Advanced Resuscitation Techniques (AID) 
Beeney Myles Cook Michael Davey Jackson 
Jolliffe Gabrielle Stegmann Emma Upfold Ella 
      

Nipper Rescue Certificate 
Aldred Maree Boercamp Ellie Boercamp Scott 
Bowley Jon Braimbridge Philip Chaperon Matthew 
Charlton Ben Clancy Ashley Constantaras Spiros 
Counsel David Davies Ben Dixon Kent 
Fonti Briony Goard Robert Goodridge Nicholas 
Helmis Katerina Johnston Brendan Johnstone Mark 
Komur Zekai McGougan Callum McGuiness Hayley 
Mendoza Vanessa Mills Brennen Oldfield Peter 
Ormsby Tom Ramsay Grant Redden Tony 
Richards Ian Rose Carranya Rouse Adam 
Smith David Trend Peter Tucker Mark 
Wahby Jodie Wakefield Gemma   
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First Aid 
Alexander Andrew Beeney Myles Cook Michael 
Davey Jackson Doick Mark Fowkes Carly 
Gillmore Kristine Jolliffe Gabrielle Jolliffe Mike 
Kapica Jay Lindsay Les Maguire Peyton 
Oldfield Peter Pascucci Daniela Phillips Kirk 
Piercy Craig Radford Nicole Rhatigan John 
Stegmann Paige Taylor Lara Toms Benjamin 
Upfold Ella Walker Lucas   
      

Silver Medallion Patrol Captain 
Beaton Madeleine Cook Declan Ferguson Aysha 
Jolliffe Gabrielle Kok Bart Moar Sarah 
Smith Jacob Suffell Julia Walker Robert 
Whitaker John     
      

Pain Management Resuscitation 
Davey Jackson     
      

Radio Operators 
Burton Josie Reidy Indiah   
      

Silver Medallion Aquatic Rescue 
Rosman Grant     
      

 

WA Training (Bronze Medallion) 
Suffell Julia     
      

WA Facilitator (Drone Patrol Operator) 
Piercy Craig     
      

Age Manager Course 
Bowbridge Brett Broady Mark Constantaras Spiros 
Helmis Katerina Maideen Hussain Ogilvie Shane 
Stafford Lauren Tana Amanda Volk Pippa 
Wakefield Gemma     
      

Assistant Age Manager Course 
Shiels Holly Shiels Olivia   
      

Youth Age Manager Program 
Shiels  Holly     
      

Youth Coach Program 
Boisvert Macy Kapica Jay Versace Giaan 
      

Youth Officials Program 
Kapica Jay Nelligan Blake Shiels Holly 
      

Youth Trainers Program 
Aitchison Grace Christou Tamer Maguire Peyton 
Reidy Indiah Versace Giaan   
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25 Year Long Service Award 
Edwards Kevin McKee Robert   
      

30 Year Long Service Award 
Arthur Antonia Attenborough Paul Bandy Douglas 
Carthew Alan Coventry Linda Gillmore Kristine 
McBride Michael Meldrum Bronwyn Savage Peter 
Vanalopulos Warren Waldeck Norman   
      

60 Year Long Service Award 
Campbell Edward     
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Trigg Island Surf Life Saving Club Inc 

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2024  

 

1 

 
 

Note 
2024 2023 

 $ 

Revenue 4 734,148 799,008 

Depreciation and amortisation expense  (118,011) (81,342) 

Lifesaving and Education  (17,435) (16,096) 

Surf Sports  (52,906) (64,077) 

Administration expenses  (90,462) (72,299) 

Food, beverage and merchandise expenses  (157,793) (206,742) 

Membership  (17,958) (15,575) 

Nippers and Youth  (43,423) (34,904) 

Building  (45,668) (53,758) 

Finance  (6,711) (4,287) 

Other Club expenses  (41,082) (67,544) 

Employee benefits expense  (255,530) (217,153) 

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year  (112,831) (34,769) 

Other comprehensive income    

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  - - 

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss  - - 

Other comprehensive surplus for the year, net of tax  - - 

Total comprehensive surplus / (deficit) for the year  (112,831) (34,769) 

 

 

 

 

 



Trigg Island Surf Life Saving Club Inc  

Statement of Financial Position 
30 April 2024 

 

2 

 
 

 
Note 

2024 2023 

 $ 

ASSETS    

CURRENT ASSETS    

Cash and cash equivalents 5 412,818 473,158 

Trade and other receivables 6 8,056 7,868 

Inventories  104,681 32,907 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  525,555 513,933 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS    

Property, plant and equipment 7 696,419 781,124 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  696,419 781,124 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,221,974 1,295,057 

LIABILITIES    

CURRENT LIABILITIES    

Trade and other payables 8 61,900 19,525 

Provisions 9 22,019 24,645 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  83,919 44,170 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  83,919 44,170 

NET ASSETS  1,138,056 1,250,887 

 
EQUITY 

   

Retained earnings  1,138,056 1,250,887 

TOTAL EQUITY  1,138,056 1,250,887 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2024 
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2024  

 Retained Earnings 

$ 

Balance at 1 May 2023 1,250,887 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (112,831) 

Other comprehensive income - 

Revaluation increment (decrement) - 

-Balance at 30 April 2024 1,138,056 

 

 

2023  

 
Retained Earnings 

$ 

Balance at 1 May 2022 1,285,656 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (34,769) 

Other comprehensive income - 

Revaluation increment (decrement) - 

Balance at 30 April 2023 1,250,887 



Trigg Island Surf Life Saving Club Inc 
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Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended 30 April 2024 

 

 
 

 
 

 
Note 

2024 2023 

 $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    

Membership funds received  185,349 172,649 

Sponsorship and Grants funds  165,058 174,469 

Finance income  9,367 2,261 

Food, bar, kitchen and merchandise  222,611 247,899 

Other receipts  116,940 152,382 

Donations received  34,822 49,348 

Payments to suppliers and employees  (761,180) (700,731) 

Net cash provided by/ (used in) operating activities  (27,033) 98,277 

 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

   

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (33,307) (66,613) 

Net cash used by investing activities  (33,307) (66,613) 

 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

   

Repayment of borrowings  - - 

Net cash used by financing activities  - - 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held  (60,340) 31,664 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  473,158 441,494 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 5 412,818 473,158 



Trigg Island Surf Life Saving Club Inc 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2024 
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The financial statements cover Trigg Island Surf Life Saving Club Inc as an individual entity. Trigg Island Surf Life 
Saving Club Inc is a not-for-profit Association incorporated in Western Australia under the Associations Incorporation 
Act (WA) 2015 ('the Act'). 

 
The principal activities of the Association for the year ended 30 April 2024 were: 

• Provision of weekend patrols on our beach in delivering an essential lifesaving service; 

• Provision of training courses to enhance the skills of our members; and 

• Participate in Surf Sports events, locally, interstate and internationally. 

 
The functional and presentation currency of Trigg Island Surf Life Saving Club Inc is 

Australian dollars. The financial report was authorised for issue by the Committee of 

Management on 10th June 2024 Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless 

otherwise stated. 

1 Basis of Preparation 

 
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with 
the Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Regime and the Act. 

 
The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs modified, 
where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial 
liabilities. 

 
The accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all years presented. 

 
2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Income Tax 

 
The Association is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

 
(b) Leases 

 
For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 January 2019, the Association considers whether a 
contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the 
right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply 
this definition the Association assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are 
whether: 

 
• the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly 

specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Association 

 
• the Association has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the 

identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the 
contract 

 
The Association has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The 
Association assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used 
throughout the period of use. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
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(b) Leases (cont.) 

At lease commencement date, the Association recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance 
sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, 
any initial direct costs incurred by the Association, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at 
the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any 
incentives received).  

The Association depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date 
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.  

The Association also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. 

At the commencement date, the Association measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease 
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available 
or the Association’s incremental borrowing rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in 
substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual 
value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.  

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It 
is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.  

(c) Revenue and other income 

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that economic 
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Association and specific criteria relating to the type of 
revenue as noted below, has been satisfied. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented net of returns, 
discounts and rebates. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

 Sale of goods   

Revenue is recognised on transfer of goods to the customer as this is deemed to be the point in time when risks and 
rewards are transferred and there is no longer any ownership or effective control over the goods. 

 Grant revenue   

Grant revenue is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the entity obtains 
control of the grant, it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the entity and the amount 
of the grant can be measured reliably. 

When grant revenue is received whereby the entity incurs an obligation to deliver economic value directly back to the 
contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is recognised in the statement of financial 
position as a liability until the service has been delivered to the contributor, otherwise the grant is recognised as income 
on receipt 

.
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(c) Revenue and other income (cont.) 

Trigg Island Surf Life Saving Club Inc receives non-reciprocal contributions of assets from the government and 
other parties for zero or a nominal value. These assets are recognised at fair value on the date of acquisition in 
the statement of financial position, with a corresponding amount of income recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income. 

 Donations   

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received. 

 Interest revenue   

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. 

 Rendering of services   

Revenue in relation to rendering of services is recognised depending on whether the outcome of the services can be 
estimated reliably.  If the outcome can be estimated reliably then the stage of completion of the services is used to 
determine the appropriate level of revenue to be recognised in the period. 

If the outcome cannot be reliably estimated, then revenue is recognised to the extent of expenses recognised that are 
recoverable. 

The core principle of AASB 15 is that revenue is recognised on a basis that reflects the transfer of promised goods or 
services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those 
goods or services.  

1. Revenue is recognised by applying a five-step model as follows: 

2. Identify the contract with the customer 

3. Identify the performance obligations 

4. Determine the transaction price 

5. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations 
 

Recognise revenue as and when control of the performance obligations is transferred 
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

(c) Revenue and other income  
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 Gain on disposal of non-current assets   

When a non-current asset is disposed, the gain or loss is calculated by comparing proceeds received with it 
carrying amount and is taken to profit or loss. 

 Other income   

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Association is entitled to it. 

(d) Borrowing costs  

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

(e) Goods and services tax (GST)  

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where 
the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). 

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables in 
the statement of financial position. 

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows 
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is 
classified as operating cash flows. 

(f) Inventories  

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Inventories acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration are valued at the current replacement cost as at the 
date of acquisition, which is the deemed cost. 

(g) Property, plant and equipment  

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment. 

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired for nil or nominal consideration have been recorded at the 
acquisition date fair value. 
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

(g) Property, plant and equipment  
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Where the cost model is used, the asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any 
impairment losses. Costs include purchase price, other directly attributable costs and the initial estimate of the 
costs of dismantling and restoring the asset, where applicable. 

Assets measured using the revaluation model are carried at fair value at the revaluation date less any subsequent 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluations are performed whenever there is a material 
movement in the value of an asset under the revaluation model. 

 Plant and equipment    

Plant and equipment are measured using the revaluation model. Motor vehicles are recognised at their net or 
trade in value. 

 Depreciation   

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset’s 
useful life to the Association, commencing when the asset is ready for use. 

Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the 
lease or their estimated useful life. 

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below: 

Fixed asset class Depreciation rate 

Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings  5% - 20%  

Competition Equipment  10%-20%  

Leasehold improvements  5% - 20%  

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset 
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate. 

(h) Financial instruments  

Financial instruments are recognised initially using trade date accounting, i.e., on the date that the Association 
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for 
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred). 

Financial Assets  

Financial assets are divided into the following categories which are described in detail below: 

• loans and receivables; 
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Financial assets are assigned to the different categories on initial recognition, depending on the characteristics of 
the instrument and its purpose. A financial instrument’s category is relevant to the way it is measured and whether 
any resulting income and expenses are recognised in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income. 

All income and expenses relating to financial assets are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income in the ‘finance income’ or ‘finance costs’ line item respectively. 

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market. They arise principally through the provision of goods and services to customers but also 
incorporate other types of contractual monetary assets. 

After initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision 
for impairment. Any change in their value is recognised in profit or loss. 

The Association’s trade and other receivables fall into this category of financial instruments. 

Significant receivables are considered for impairment on an individual asset basis when they are past due at the 
reporting date or when objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default. 

The amount of the impairment is the difference between the net carrying amount and the present value of the 
future expected cash flows associated with the impaired receivable. 

In some circumstances, the Association renegotiates repayment terms with customers which may lead to changes 
in the timing of the payments, the Association does not necessarily consider the balance to be impaired, however 
assessment is made on a case-by-case basis. 

Any gain or loss arising from derivative financial instruments is based on changes in fair value, which is determined 
by direct reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or losses or other financial 
liabilities depending on the purpose for which the liability was acquired. Although the Association uses derivative 
financial instruments in economic hedges of currency and interest rate risk, it does not hedge account for these 
transactions. 

The Association‘s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables (including finance lease 
liabilities), which are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.  

Impairment of financial assets 

At the end of the reporting period the Association assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial 
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. 
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(i) Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

Bank overdrafts also form part of cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows and are presented 
within current liabilities on the statement of financial position. 

(j) Employee benefits  

Provision is made for the Association's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees 
to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within one year have 
been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. 

3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments  

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding assumptions 
about current and future events affecting transactions and balances. 

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial 
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates. 

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below. 

 Key estimates - receivables   

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that any of 
the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the entire balance is not 
considered collectible. No impairment exists in the current financial period. 

 Key estimates - inventory   

Each item on inventory is reviewed on an annual basis to determine whether it is being carried at higher than its net 
realisable value. During the year, management have written down inventory based on best estimate of the net realisable 
value, although until the time that inventory is sold this is an estimate.  
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4      Revenue 

 
 2024 2023 

  $ 

Sales revenue   

- Membership fees 185,349 172,649 

- Sale of food, beverage and 
merchandise 

222,611 247,899 

 407,960 420,548 

Other revenue   

- Donations and fundraising 34,822 49,348 

- Sponsorship and grants 165,058 174,469 

- Other trading revenue 116,941 152,382 

- Finance income 9,367 2,261 

 326,188 378,460 

Total Revenue 734,148 799,008 

2 Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash at bank and in hand 412,818 473,158 

 412,818 473,158 

3 Trade and Other Receivables 

 

CURRENT   

Trade receivables 8,056 7,868 

Deposit paid - - 

 8,056 7,868 

4 Plant and Equipment 

 

Plant and equipment   

At cost 612,028 603,398 

Accumulated depreciation (347,681) (303,656) 

 264,347 299,742 

Leasehold Improvements   

At cost 1,282,872 1,282,872 

Accumulated amortisation (850,800) (801,490) 

 432,072 481,382 

 696,419 781,124 
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8       Trade and Other Payables 

 
  2023 2023 

  
 

$ 

 Current  
 

 

 Trade payables  51,470 8,583 

 GST payable/(receivable)  (3,051) (2,922) 

 Other payables  13,481 13,864 

   61,900 19,525 

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days.  The carrying 
amounts are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

9  Provisions 

 
 Current liabilities  

 Annual leave  20,649 13,274 

 Long Service Leave  1,370 11,371 

   22,019 24,645 

     

10     Auditors' Remuneration 

 Remuneration of Crunch Auditing, for:    

 - auditing or reviewing the financial statements 

 

4,500 4,000 

     

11     Contingencies 

In the opinion of the Committee of Management, the Association did not have any contingencies at 30 April 2024. 
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12 Events after the end of the Reporting Period  

The financial report was authorised for issue on 10th June 2024 by the Committee of Management. 

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the Association, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the 
Association in future financial years. 

13 Statutory Information  

The registered office of the association is: The principal place of business is: 

Trigg Island Surf Life Saving Club Inc Trigg Island Surf Life Saving Club Inc 

360 West Coast Drive 360 West Coast Drive 

Trigg, WA, 6029 Trigg, WA, 6029 
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Statement by Members of the Committee 

 

 

In the opinion of the committee the financial report as set out on pages 1 to 14: 

 

1. Present fairly the financial position of Trigg Island Surf Life Saving Club Inc as at 30 April 204 and its 
performance for the year ended on that date in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including 
Australian Accounting Interpretations) of the Australian Accounting Standards Board – Reduce Disclosure 
Regime. 

 

2. At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that Trigg Island Surf Life Saving Club 
Inc will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due. 

 

 

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the committee and is signed for and on behalf of the 

committee by: 

 

 

President......................................................................................... 

 

 

 

Treasurer......................................................................................... 

Dated this 10th day of June 2024 
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